TOWN OF COLUMBINE VALLEY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
April 19,2016

AGENDA
1. ROLL CALL 6:30PM
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES Mayor Christy
March 15, 2016 and April 11, 2016 Minutes

4. OLD BUSINESS
(Resignation of Trustee Champion)

5. SWEARING IN OF MAYOR AND TRUSTEES Judge Jim Keil
Mayor Richard Champion 2 Years
Trustee Gale D. Christy 4 Years
Trustee Roy Palmer 4 Years
Recognition of Outgoing Trustees Mayor Champion

6. RECESS - Refreshments

7. ROLL CALL
8. MAYOR’S COMMENTS | Mayor Champion
Appointment of Trustees
Qaths of Office : Judge Jim Keil
Trustee Bill Dotson 2 Years

Election of Mayor Pro Tem
Appointment of Commissioners

Appointments and Oaths Mayor Champion
Municipal Judge 2 Years
Town Attorney 2 Years Judge Jim Keil
‘Town Treasurer 2 Years
Town Administrator 2 Years
Town Clerk 2 Years
Town Marshall 2 Years
Building Inspector 2 Years
Court Clerk 2 Years
9. CITIZENS CONCERNS Mayor Champion
Columbine Country Club

HOA Presidents/Representatives
Public Comments

10. TRUSTEE COMMENTS:
Mayor Pro Tem Cope
Trustee Christy
Trustee Dotson
Trustee Menk
Trustee Palmer



I1.
12.
13,
14.

15.

16.

17.

TOWN ADMINISTRATORS REPORT

POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT

TOWN TREASURERS REPORT

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS
Resolution #3, Series 2016 Land Use Regs
Set a study session regarding Metro Districts on WPF

EXECUTIVE SESSION
Conference with the Town Attorney to discuss personnel
matters CRS 24-6-402(4)(b) and to review minutes of
January 19, 2016 and April 4, 2016.

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. McCrumb
Chief Cottrell

Mr. Tempas

Mr. Sieber
Mr. McCrumb

Mayor Champion



April 15, 2016
Memo: Board of Trustees
FROM: Town Planner -
RE: Amendmen’r ’ro the Land Use Regulohons

- At their meehng on Aprll 12”' ’rhe Planning and Zomng Commission comple’red their

B update of the Land Use Regulations. This update includes mojor revisions of Article XI,

Design Standards. Because P&Z wanted to be sure that the new design requirements
would opply to any new applications, they directed the staff 1‘0 place ’rhe omendmenf
on the Trus’ree s agenda for your April 19th meeting. : : ‘

A’r’roched are:

1. The revised Land Usé Regulo’rioné ‘For the most part the revisions are. not majorin
that they do not chonge the intent or major requirements. All the revisions are
shown in blue fonT

2. A Toble of Revisions which indicates which pages are revised and the specific
Sections and the reason for the revisions. Those revmons ’rho’r are most significant
are: shown in botd blue font on ’rhe Toble : co

The s’roff apologizes for this Io’re addition to your ogendo bu’r |’r is |mpor’ron’r ’ro hove your
oc’rlon before your next meehng : : :






RESOLUTION NO. 3
SERIES OF 2016

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING LAND USE REGULATIONS IN THE TOWN OF
COLUMBINE VALLEY

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Columbine Valley and
the Town Staff have been drafting amendments to the Land Use Regulations approved by the
Town in 2014; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission had recommended approval of
amendments to Articles VI through XIIT of these Land Use Regulations, a copy of which are
attached hereto as Exhibit A:; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Town of Columbine Valley deems it is in the
best interests of the Town to approve said amendments to the Land Use Regulations;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Town of
Columbine Valley, Colorado:

Section 1. The Board of Trustees of the Town of Columbine Valley hereby approve and
adopt the amendments to the Land Use Regulations as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

Section 2. Should any one or more sections or provisions of this Resolution be judicially
determined invalid or unenforceable, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the
remaining provisions of this Resolution, the intention being that the various sections and
provisions are severable.

Section 3. Any and all Resolutions or parts thereof in conflict or inconsistent herewith
are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; provided however, that the
repeal of any such Resolution or part thereof shall not revive any other section or part of any
Resolution heretofore repealed or superseded.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by a vote of for and against
this 19" day of April, 2016.

JD McCrumb, Clerk Richard Champion, Mayor






EXHIBIT A

LAND USE REGULATIONS OF
THE TOWN OF COLUMBINE VALLEY






Land Use';Rer’_.-, -
Table of Revisions

| Mode ot 4/12/16 Study Sesslori

Explanahon

Page “Aricle
B _ Article VI e ‘
51 . Section 187~ | Adds Waiver and Exemphons io list of
| A application opilons )
o Sechon 1C -Moves paragr-dph on Chargequck. -
- 53 -."Sec’non 2B1e 7 Requires prior approval-of Wcivers"ahd‘
K ' Exemplions before’ appllcahon .
qccepied '
Section 2B4 “Includes: Long Letter as a s’rep in ’rhe :
o ' process :
577 Sechon 2812_- © | Relatesto recording ’rh;e -Preliminory'
o 8 _ plan/plat
- 60 Section 31 b Allows Dedication by plat
Section 312d Requwes completion of prewously
‘ deferred improvements.
61 - Section 3K Requwes DIgITQl Copy
~“Section 3L Effecﬂve Dofe of Fmoﬂ Approvol
Y  Section 4B1c ~ OpeénSpace Reduction
. Aricle VII L o -
b6 Section 2A5 -Concerning number of copies.
C 68 Section 2A5y - Digitalcopy required. - -
Relating to number of copies - -
69 Section 2B50 Allows "illustrative” building elevations.

: ST '_ E'Refers”.’rd Design-S’rdnddrd’s s
L Section 2Bé Amends Londscape pfcm requwemems
AR “Section 2C1 Allows Town Administrator and Town

DR L 3 Planner to sign preliminary mylars
72 Section 2C2 - Revises Improvements Completed note .

' L to allow deferred imiprovements. .

.75 - Section2D - . Nairative.on final plals
- 81 -4 - SectiondB- - -

~ Relates to number of copies ™

5B8.

Notification of'Lond OWners L







Land. Use Regs

- Table of Revisions

“Aficle

- Explanation -

EPage ¥

. Article VII _ D
81 C5C Processing Use by Special Review
| Article VIl | —
87 Section 4A Applicant Prepares Subdivision
__Improvement Agreement
B Article IX B
89. “Secfion 1A2 Reldtes to number of Copies
89 Section 1B] - . Relates to Copies
89 Section 2 _ Determent of Submittal Requirements
Article X 1 -
96 Section 2A | - Relates to requiring additional public
) - - _improvements '
~Article XI . , L
103 Section 1D Adds Landscape Design Guideiines
105 Section 1E Adds Architectural Design Standards
. - Aricle XlI ' s
109 - ~Section 11 Adds Resubdivisions
110 " Section 12A - Adds Minor Subdivisions
e . Article XllI e
119 | - Defines HOA and “Homeowners

. Association”

- Adds Definition of "Long Letter”

Includes resubdivision in Definition

- Adds Minor Subdivision Definition







4/19/16

TOWN OF COLUMBINE VALLEY

ZONING CODE AND LAND USE REGULATIONS
ARTICLE |

GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. TITLE AND AUTHORITY

A. This Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Columbine Valley,
Colorado, (“Town") establishes land use classifications; divides the Town into
zone districts; imposes regulations, prohibitions, procedures and restrictions;
governs the use of land for residential and non-residential purposes; regulates
and limits lot occupancy; determines the requirement for open space;
establishes standards of performance and design; adopts a map of said land
use districts; prescribes procedures for changes and modifications of districts;
provides for the land development and subdivision process, uses by special
review, variances and other permits; allows for non-conforming uses of
structures and land; provides regulations for accessory uses and buildings;
provides for the adjustment, amendment and enforcement thereof; defines
certain terms; provides a means of appedal; prescribes penalties for violations
of its provisions; and repeals existing Town of Columbine Valley zoning
crdinances, regulations and amendments thereof. Only Articles -V are
adopted by this Ordinance; Articles VI-XIIl are adopted by resolution.

B. The Town of Columbine Valley Zoning Code and Land Use Regulations are
authorized by Title 31, Article 23, Part 3 of the Colorado Revised Statutes
(CRS), as amended, and are hereby declared o be in accordance with all
provisions of these statutes.

C. The Town has the authority to plan for and regulate the use of land and to
administer and regulate areas and activities of special interest as might be
delineated in the Master Plan under authority of CRS Title 31, Article 23, Part 2,
as amended. :



4/19/16

SECTION 2. SHORT TITLE
For the purpose of brevity, the Town of Columbine Valley Zoning Code and Land
Use Regulations shall hereinafter be referred to as "these Regulations”.

SECTION 3. PURPOSE

These Regulations shall be for the purpose of promoting the health, safety,
convenience, order, prosperity and/or welfare of the present and future
inhabitants of the Town of Columbine Valley, Colorado, by managing the
congestion on the streets and roads or ensuring that the roads are built or
maintained to adequately handle traffic, securing safety from fire and other
dangers, providing adequate light and air, classifying land uses and land
development, protecting the fax base, securing economy in governmental
expenditures, and providing for the implementation of the goals and policies of
the Master Plan or other policies approved by the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 4. JURISDICTION
These Regulations shall apply to all properties within the incorporated area of
the Town of Columbine Valley, Colorado.

SECTION 5. ZONING DISTRICTS
The Town of Columbine Valley is hereby divided into the following zoning
districts;

A Agriculture

R-1 Residential

ccC Country Club

MUPD Mixed Use Planned Development

RPD Residential Planned Development
REPD Residential Estate Planned Development (Reserved)
EPD Equestrian Planned Development

SECTION 6. ZONING MAP

The location and boundaries of the zoning districts hereby established are
shown on the map entitled Zoning Map, Town of Columbine Valley, Colorado.
The Zoning Map is included as Appendix A of these Regulations.

SECTION 7. APPLICATION OF THESE REGULATIONS

After the effective date of these Regulations, but subject to Article Il, Section 8
of these Regulations dealing with non-conforming uses, land and structures:




4/19/16

A. Any new building or other structure, and any fract of land may be used for
any purpose permitted or required by these Regulations for the district in
which such building, other structure or tract of land is located, and for no
other purpose.

B. No zoning district or land use shall be modified, altered or amended without
following the Planned Development process and receiving the Board of
Trustees’ approval of a Planned Development, as provided for in these
regulations.

Exception: any single-family residence in an established A or R-1 zone district.

C. The provisions of these Regulations are applicable not only to private persons,
agencies, corporations and organizations, but also to all public agencies and
organizations to the full extent that they may be enforceable.

SECTION 8. EXISTING PERMITS, EASEMENTS, PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PLANS AND
OTHER APPROVALS

These Regulations are not intended to abrogate, annul, govern or prevail over
any permit, easement, final Planned Development plan or other approvai issued
prior to the effective date of these Regulations.

SECTION 9. OVERLAPPING REGULATIONS

Except with respect to approved finai Planned Development plans, whenever a
provision of these Regulations, other law, ordinance, resolution, rule or regulation
of any kind contains any restrictions that cover the same subject matter, the
more restrictive requirements shall govern.

SECTION 10. VIOLATIONS

Land in the Town of Columbine Valley shall not be used, nor any building or
structure erected, constructed, enlarged, altered, maintained, moved or used in
violation of these Regulations or amendments thereto. The Board of Trustees,
through the Town Attorney and courts of appropriate jurisdiction, which includes
the Town of Columbine Valley Municipal Court, may initiate legal or other
appropriate action to prevent, abate or remove such unlawful use,
mainienance, erection, construction, reconstruction or alteration, in addition to
any other remedies provided by law. Any such violation of these Regulations
shall be considered unlawful and a public nuisance.




4/19/16

SECTION 11. ENFORCEMENT

A. Al officials, employees and consultants of the Town of Columbine Valley
vested with the duty or authority to issue permits shall not issue any permit,
certificate or license in confiict with the provisions of these Regulations. Any
approvals issued in conflict with the provisions of these Regulations shall be
null and void. It shall be the duty of the Town Administrator of the Town of
Columbine Valley, or his/her designee, to enforce the provisions of these
Regulations pertaining to the use, maintenance, erection, construction,
reconstruction, alteration, moving, conversion or addition to any building or
structure.

B. Right-of-Entry
The Building Inspector, Town Administrator or any duly authorized person shall
have the right to enter upon any premises at any reasonable time for the
purpose of making inspections of buildings or premises necessary fo perform
his/her duties in performance of this title.

C. Ligbility
The enforcing official, or his/her authorized representative charged with the
enforcement of these Regulations acting in good faith and without malice in
discharge of his/her duties, shall not thereby render himself/herself personally
liable for any damage that may accrue to persons or property as a result of
any act or by reason of any act or omission in the discharge of his/her duties.
The Town will indemnify and hold harmless the enforcing official or his/her
authorized representative in any suit initiafed against the enforcing official or
authorized representative due to such act or omission performed by him/her
in the enforcement of provisions of these Regulations.

SECTION 12. PENALTIES

Failure fo comply with any of the provisions of this these Regulations, unless a
variance has been authorized by the Board of Adjustment or an amendment
approved by the Board of Trustees, shall upon conviction be punishable by ¢
fine of not more than $2,650 or imprisonment for a period of not more than one
year, or both. Each day that such a violation continues to exist shall be
considered as a separate offense.

SECTION 13. INVALID PROVISIONS

If any part, subpart, section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of these
Regulations is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such a decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of
these Regulations.




4/19/16

SECTION 14. REPEAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE

A. All zoning regulations heretofore adopted by the Board of Trustees, whether
they are amendments, extensions or initial legislation, are hereby declared
null and void and superseded by these Regulations.

B. Such repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any
person for the violation of any Regulation repealed hereby, for any offense
committed prior to the repeal.

C. These Regulations are effective as of 30 days after publication of the
Ordinance and Resolution(s) adopting these Regulations.

SECTION 15. VESTED PROPERTY RIGHTS

A. Purpose
The purpose of this section is to provide the procedures necessary to

implement the provisions of CRS Title 24, Article 68, as amended, relative to
the creation of vested property rights.

B. Site-Specific Development Plan Defined

1.

For all developments, including developments for any portion of a parcel
of land, “site-specific development plan” shall mean the final approved
Planned Development plan in the Town of Columbine Valley. However,
the Board of Trustees may by agreement with the landowner, or applicant
on behalf of the landowner, designate an approval other than the said
final approved Planned Development plan step to serve as the site-
specific development plan approval for a specific project. in the event a
final development is approved for the property covered by a previously
approved site specific development plan, the final development plan
shall prevail:

2. The cover page of any set of documenits that is intfended to consfitute a

site-specific development plan shall contain the following language: “This
approved plan constitutes a site-specific development plan pursuant to
this section and CRS Sections 24-68-101 et seq., and establishes the vested
property rights for three years from its effective date to undertake and
complete the development and use of the property in accordance with
this plan.”

A site-specific development plan shall not include a variance, o
preliminary plan as defined in CRS Section 30-28-101(4) or any of the
following:



4/19/16

a. A sketch plan as defined in CRS Section 30-28-101(8}, CRS; (8);
b. A final architectural plan;

¢. Final construction drawings and related documents specifying
materials and methods for construction of improvements.

C. Amendmenits to Site-Specific Development Plan
In the event amendments to a site-specific development plan are approved,
the effective date of such amendments, for purposes of duration of a vested
property right, shall remain the date of the approval of the original site-
specific development plan unless the Board of Trustees specifically finds to
the contrary and incorporates such finding in ifs approval of the amendment.

D. Approvai Effective Date

A site-specific development plan shall be deemed approved upon the
effective date of the approval action relating thereto by the Board of
Trustees. Such approval shall be subject to all rights of referendum and
judicial review except that the period of time permitted by law for exercise of
such rights shall not begin to run until the date of publication in a newspaper
of general circulation within the jurisdiction of the Town granting the
approval of a notice advising the general public of the site-specific
development plan approval and creation of a vested property right pursuant
to this section. Such publication shall occur no later than 14 days following
approval.

E. Other Provisions of Law Unaffected
Approval of a site-specific development plan pursuant fo this section shall
not constitute an exemption from, or waiver of, any other provisions of the
Municipal Code of the Town of Columbine Valley or any other ordinances of
the Town.

F. Excepftion to Vesting of Property Rights
A vested property right once established as provided by this section
precludes any zoning or land use action by the Town or pursuant to an
initiated measure which would alter, impair, prevent, diminish or otherwise
delay the development or use of the property as set forth in the site-specific
development plan except:

1. With the consent of the affected landowner,;

2. Upon the discovery of natural or manmade hazards on or in the
immediate vicinity of the subject property, which hazards could not

6



4/19/16

reasonably have been discovered at the time of the site-specific
development plan approval, and which hazards, if uncorrected, would
pose a serious threat to public health, safety and welfare;

3. To the extent that the affected landowner receives just compensation for
all costs, expenses and liabilities incurred by the landowner, including, but
not limited to, all fees paid in consideration of financing, and all
architectural, planning, marketing, legal and other consultants’ fees
incurred ofter approval by the Board of Trustees together with interest
thereon at the legal rate until paid; just compensation shall not include
any diminution in the value of the property which is caused by such
action, nor shall it include any claim for consequential damages or any
claim for loss of profits.

4. That the establishment of a vested property right pursuant to faw shall not
preclude the application of ordinances or regulations that are general in
nature and are applicable to all property subject to land use regulation
by the town, including, but not limited to, building, fire, plumbing,
electrical and mechanical, housing and dangerous building codes.

G. Notice and Recording
In addition, within 30 calendar days of the approval or act that creates ¢
vested property right as described in Paragraph 15.B, of this Section, the
owner of the property upon which the vested property right exists, or his/her
authorized designee, shall submit two sets of twenty-four inch by thirty-six inch
(24" x 36"} photographic Mylar copies of the approved plan or plat and
containing the language required in Paragraph B.2 of this section.

H. Other Provisions of Law Unaffected
Approval of a site-specific development plan pursuant to this section shall
not constitute an exemption from, or waiver of, any other provisions of the
municipal code of this Town or any other ordinances of the Town.




4/19/16



ARTICLE I
ZONING DISTRICT REGULATIONS

SECTION 1. AGRICULTURE (A) DISTRICT

A. Intent

To provide for low density residential and agricultural activities within the
Town of Columbine Valley. Unless specifically modified by the Board of
Trustees’ the permitted and accessory uses, and development standards,
shall be as specified in this Section.

B. Principal Permitted Uses

1.

Not to exceed one single family dwelling unit except as provided herein.

2. The keeping and sale of agricultural products, including livestock, and

small animals that are raised on the property, and the sale is conducted
by the owner of the property or the resident of the dwelling unit. Any sales
activity shall be clearly incidental to the primary permitted uses. Any sales
activity that creates a traffic impact, glare or noise that, in the sole
discretion of the Board of Trustees, adversely affects the adjacent
property owners is not permitted.

Group home for eight or fewer developmentally disabled or elderly
persons subject to Article lll, Section 1 of these Regulations.

C. Accessory Uses

1.

Buildings and uses customarily appurtenant to the permitted agricultural
use, not to exceed two per acre or a total of 12 buildings.

Home occupations as specified in Article lll, Section 2 of these
Regulations.

The keeping of not more than six agricultural animals per acre, not to
include more than three large animails {e.g., horses, cows) per acre.

Greenhouse not to exceed 600 square feet (600 sq. ft.) gross floor areq |
GFA).

5. Temporary structures related and necessary to construction activity during

the period the primary structures are being constructed.



4/19/16

6.

Mother-in-law apartment/dwelling unit as specified in Article lll, Section 6
of these Regulations.

Electrical, gas, cable TV and telephone lines and facilities subject to
Article lll, Section 5 of these Regulations.

Wells, imigation, water supply, sanitary sewer and drainage activities
subject to Article lll, Section 4 of these Regulations.

D. Use by Special Review

The Board of Trustees may approve the following as a use by special review
in accordance with Article VI, Section 5 of these Regulations:

1.

2.

Public and quasi-public uses.
Non-commercial wind energy systems.

Private garages, enclosed or partially enclosed, capable of housing more
than four vehicies.

Uses by a public utility except as provided in Article Hll, Section 5, of these
Regulations

Temporary structures that are not related to construction activities.
Greenhouse(s) that exceed 600 square feet GFA.

Wireless communication facilities; these facilities are subject to
Section 5.05 of the Municipal Code of the Town of Columbine Valley.

E. Minimum Lot Size

87.120 square feet.

F. Maximum Height of Structures

1.

2.

3.

The principail structure shall not exceed thirty-five feet (35') in height.
Accessory structures shall not exceed twenty-five feet {25') in height.

For height measurement, see “Building Height" in Article XIlI, Definitions.

10



41916

' G. Se’rbocks o ‘
. Single-family dwelllng um’r

a. Front yard: Thirty-five feet (35').

b. Side yor‘d:Twen’ry—five-feié';fli{éS’-}:. |

C. Reoryqrd Twen‘ry f|ve fee’f (25 ).
2 The fron’r yard is defmed in Ar’ncle XIII Defmmons "BUlidmg Fron’r” B
3. Accessory s’rruc’rures | | | . -

a. Front yard: Not less than twenty-five feet (25'). Any yard odjacen’r to oﬁ":
public ROW is con5|dered a front yard.

.b-. Slde' and re._ctr.yar'd se"rbocks:_NoT less than fifteen feet (175'); |
H. Slgnoge

One “for sale” or “for ren’r” 3|gn wu’rh a maximum surfoce area of SIX squclre
feet (6 sq. ft.) and a mcmmum he|gh1 of six feet (6} is permﬁ’red

11



4/19/16



4/19/16

SECTION 2. RESIDENTIAL (R-1) DISTRICT (QOLD TOWN)

A. Intent

To provide for areas in Columbine Valley which are suitable for low- density
residential developmeni. Unless specifically modified by the Board of Trustees’,
the permitted and accessory uses, and development standards, shall be as
specified in this Section.

B. Principal Permitied Uses

1.

2.

Not to exceed one single-family dwelling unit except as provided herein.

Group homes for eight or fewer developmentally disabled or elderly
persons subject to Article lli, Section 1 of these Regulations.

Wells, irrigation canals, ditches and laterals, water supply and flood
control reservoirs (not elevated), subject to Article lll, Section 4 of these
Regulations.

Underground utility lines, transformers, electrical substations, gas regulator
stations and similar facilities subject to Article lll, Section 5 of these
Regulations.

C. Accessory Uses

1.

Buildings and uses customarily appurtenant to the permitted residential use not
to exceed one structure.,

Home occupations as specified in Arficle lll, Section 2 of these Regulations.

Other uses that are clearly accessory or incidental to the primary permitted uses
and are shown on the approved Final Development Plan.

Wells, irigation canals, ditches and laterals, water supply and flood control
reservoirs (not elevated), subject to Article IIt, Section 4, of these Regulations.

Underground utility lines, transformers, electrical substations, gas regulator
stations and similar facilities subject to Article lll, Section 5 of these Regulations.

Wireless communication facilities subject to Section 5.05 of the Municipal Code
of the Town of Columbine Valley.

Mother-in-law apartments as specified in Article Ill, Section 6 of these
Regulations.

13



4119716

D. Maximum Height of Structures
1. No structure shall exceed twenty-eight feet (28'} in height or contain more
than one floor excluding basements.

2. For height measurement, see “Building Height" in Article XIlI, Definitions.

E. Lot Size
The minimum lot size is one-half {1/2) acre.

F. Setbacks
1. Front yard: Thirty feet {30'). Any yard adjacent to a public ROW is
considered a front yard.

2. Side yard: Fifteen feet {15').

3. Rear yard: Forty feet (40').

G. Signage
One "“for sale" or “for rent” sign with a maximum surface area of six square

feet (6 sqg. ft.) and a maximum height of six feet (6') is permitted.

H. Lighting :
Extericr lights, whether building-mounted or free-standing, shall be hooded or
shielded so as not to cast light on adjocent properties nor dilute the night sky.
Building-mounted exterior lights shall not protrude above the eave line. Free-

standing lights shall not exceed six feet {4') in height.

I. Fences, Walls and Hedges
No fence, wall or hedge over three feet high shall be constructed or
maintained nearer than 40 feet to any property line except from street and
right-of-ways where no fences, walls or hedges will be permitted nearer than
30 feet, unless the fence predates the adoption of these Rules and
Regulations.

14



4/19/16

SECTION 3. COUNTRY CLUB (CC) DISTRICT

A. Intent

To provide for Country Club uses within the Town of Columbine Valley. Unless
specifically modified by the Board of Trustees’ the permitted and accessory
uses, and developmeni standards, shall be as specified in this Section.

B. Principal Permitied Uses

1.

Country club, including golf courses, fennis courts, swimming pools and a
clubhouse or similar structure containing faciliies commonly associated
with a country club.

Wells, irigation canals, ditches and laterals, water supply and flood
conirol reservoirs {not elevated), subject to Article lll, Section 4 of these
Regulations.

Underground utility lines, transformers, electrical substations, gas regulator
stations and similar facilities subject to Article Ill, Section 5 of these
Regulations.

C. Accessory Uses

1.

Structures accessory and incidental to the primary permitted uses (i.e.,
maintenance and storage buildings, frash enclosures, on-course food
services, restroom facilities, pumping facilities and similar structures for the
use and operation of a country club).

2. Parking areas for vehicles, golf carts and bicycles.

D. Use by Special Review

Wireless communication facilities subject to Section 5.05 of the Municipal
Code of the Town of Columbine Valley.

E. Maximum Height of Structures

1.

The principal structure shall not exceed thirty-five feet (35"} in height unless
otherwise approved under a Planned Development plan by the Town
Board of Trustees.

2. The accessory structures shall not exceed eighteen feet (18’) in height

unless approved under a Planned Development plan by the Town Board
of Trustees.

3. For height measurement, see "Building Height" in Article Xlil, Definitions.

15



4/19/16

F. Setbacks

1.

Principal structure

a. Front yard: 75 feet (75'} adjacent to any residential property and
twenty-five feet (25') adjacent to any other ROW or property line. Any
yard adjacent o a public ROW is considered a front yard.

b. Side and rear yards: 50 feet (50') adjacent to any residential property
and 20 feet (20') adjacent to any other ROW or property line.

Accessory structures

The minimum setback on all sides is 35 feet (35} adjacent to any
residential property and 15 feet {15’} adjacent to any other ROW or
property line.

G. Off-Street Parking

1.

One space per 150 square feet (150 sq. ft.) of GFA of the principal
buildings exclusive of non-occupied space such as basements, storage,
mechanical, elevator and stair shafts, or similar unoccupied floor area.

The parking setbacks on all sides are 15 feet {15’} adjacent to residential
property and 10 feet (10') adjacent to any other ROW or property line.

H. Minimum Design Standards

Unless otherwise approved by the Board of Trustee, the following standards
apply:

1.

Equipment and maintenance materials stored outside shall be screened
from view by fences, screens, berms or other means satisfactory o the
Board of Trustees.

Parking lots on the property shall be screened from any public ROW and
adjacent properties under separate ownership. A minimum of 15 percent
of any parking lot containing one bay of parking or more shall be
landscaped in accordance with the design standord set forth in
Paragraph H.3.a, of this section.

Landscape buffer area

a. The landscaping will incorporate a minimum of one shade tree and
one shrub or flowering tree for each fifteen linear feet (15') or fraction
thereof of the buffer area (as measured along the property line) and
groundcover over the entire ared. The use of earth berms and
decorative fencing is not required but encouraged. The trees and

16



4/19/16

shrubs shall be designed and planted to provide privacy; mitigate
noise, glare and unsightly views; and provide aesthetic interest.

. Unsightly areas, including, but not limited to, outside trash receptacles,

loading docks, utility boxes and similar appurtenances shall be
screened from public sidewalks, streets and other adjacent properties.
Unsightly areas seen from surrounding public properties or private
properties under separate ownership shall be screened. The following
guidelines should be used:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Any plants used as a screen should be coniferous. They should
provide an opaque screen within three years from the time they are
planted.

Utifity boxes, including, but not limited to, electric tfransformers,
switchgear boxes and felephone pedestals and boxes, should be
screened on all sides not used for service access.

The materials and colors of the screen should blend with the site
and the surroundings.

Trash enclosures should be placed around dumpsters and any other
proposed receptacles of trash. The dumpster should be entirely
screened from view. The enclosure should prevent trash from being
scattered by wind or animals. The dumpster should be placed on a
concrete pad and enclosed by an opaque wall at least six feet (6')
in height with opaque gates. The enclosure should be sturdy and
built with quality wood and/or masonry materials. The trash
enclosure should be sited so the garbage truck has convenient
access to the enclosure and has room o maneuver without
backing onto a public ROW.

Lighting

0} Parking lot lighting shall be screened so it will not cast light on
adjacent properties and shall not exceed 25 feet (25') in height.

b) Pedestrian lighting shall be provided at all building entrances
and walkways to ensure adequate and safe access fo and from
buildings.

6) Any sign proposal will be part of a Planned Development
submittal.

17



4119716

18



4/19/16

SECTION 4. MIXED USE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (MUPD) DISTRICT

A. Intent

The intent of this section is to guide development of new mixed use projects
within Columbine Valley and to provide a detailed review of how these projects
deliver essential services {(water and sanitation, fire and police protection, open
space, etc.).

B. Principal Permitted Uses
The following principal uses are aliowed subject to final approval of a Final
Plan, which will stipulate site-specific approved uses.

1. Commercial
a. Professional office.
b. Bank.
c. Restaurant.

d. Community retail, not to exceed 50,000 square feet (50,000 sq. ft.) with
any one store not to exceed 15,000 square feet (15,000 sq. f1.).

e. Drive-through: Any drive-through proposed ih conjunction with any
permitted use shall be subject to site-specific review to determine if the
drive-through can be incorporated without undue impact to
neighboring properties. All other uses are prohibited unless approved
by the Board of Trustees.

2. Residential
a. Single-family dwelling unit attached or detached.

b. Multi-family units intended to be sold as owner-occupied.

c. Group home for eight or fewer developmentally disabled or elderly
persons subject to Article lll, Section 1 of these Regulations.

C. Accessory Uses
1. Uses accessory and incidental to the primary permitted uses.

2. Home occupations as specified in Arficle lll, Section 2 of these
Regulations.

19



4/19/16

Mother-in-law apartment/dwelling as specified in Article Ill, Section 6 of
these Regulations.

Wells, irrigation canals, ditches and laterals, water supply and flood
control reservoirs (not elevated), subject to Article Ill, Section 4 of these

Regulations.

Wireless communication facilities subject to Section 5.05 of the Municipal
Code of the Town of Columbine Valiey.

Underground ulility lines, transformers, electrical substations, gas regulator
stations and similar facilities subject to Article Ill, Section 5 of these
Regulations.

D. Bulk and Space Requirements

Unless otherwise approved by the Board of Trustees under a Planned
Development plan, bulk and space requirements are as follows:

1.

Maximum building height: The maximum building height shall not exceed
35 feet (35'). For height measurement, see “Building Height” in Article XIil,
Definitions.

Minimum common open space

a. Commercial: 20 percent.

b. Residential: 20% percent.

Setbacks

a. Commercial
1) Front yard: 25 feet (25').

2) Side and rear yards: 25 feet (25°).

b. Residential
1} Front yard: 20 feef {20').

2} Side and rear yards: 10 feet (10°).

20



a.

n9ne.

'-qurkIng_[Minirnum)

'Commerciol

B ) | Re’rorl one space for eve‘ry 250 gross squore fee’r

.:' 2) Offrce one spoce for every 325 gross squore fee’rl
;f3.):__-R_es’rouron1: one spoce_'-for e,ve,ry .].25-.gross ,squqr._e'feet. ,

‘Residential

1) Single-family dwelling unit: two spoces per unit,
2) Multi-family residential unit: two spaces per unit.

: _3) Group home: one spoce per: four bedrooms

Pcrrking se’rbocks Commeraol ond multi- fomrly resudenhol unit

l) Front yord 20 fee’r (20 ).

2) Side and rear yards: 10 feeT (lO )

' E. Signage o L
- Inliev of. ’rhe requrremen’rs below, Gpplrcon’rs mcry propose a complete
sighage package as part of the Plonned Developmen’r submn"rol for

Con5|dero’rlon by the Town.

. _l .'

-.a.

Re5|den’r|oi

Project identfification signs: One per eoch mcuor entrance. Signs shall be
ground-mounted and not exceed six feet (6'} in height and forty- 2
eight square feet (48 sq. ft.) {per face). Signs shall be ground-lighted with

.o m’rernol lighting unless o’rherW|se opproved by the Board of Trustees.

.-"__Offlce ond retail

Prorec’r identification S|gns One per eoch mojor entrance. Signs sholl

be ground-mounted and not exceed six feet (6') in helgh’r and forty- o

eight square feet (48:sq. ft.) {per foce) Signs shall be ground-lighted |

} iwr’rh no internal Iighhng

;Burldrng fascia srgns One sign’ per ’renon’r unl’r wr’rh exterior wall

exposure. Signs shall be mounted below the buﬂdrng parapet line ond_':_"

: ~ should not exceed_one half square foot (1/2 sq. ft.) for each foot of

i



4/19/16

store frontage. Letter heights should not exceed thirty inches (30”) and
shail be indirecily lighted.

c. Directional and informational signs: As needed. Directional and
informational signs include “Fire Lane,” “No Parking,” “Exit,” "One Way'
and directional arrows. Directional and informational signs shall not
exceed six square feet (6 5q. ft.) per face.

d. Temporary signs: As approved on the Planned Development plan.
Conditions may be placed on inclusion, design and length of time
permitted.

22



4/19/16

SECTION 5. RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (RPD) DISTRICT

A. Intent

The intent of this section is to guide development of new residential subdivisions
within Columbine Valley and to provide a detailed review of how these
developments provide essential services (water and sanitation, schools, parks
and recreation, fire and police protection, open space, etc., and to insure that
the sireets are designed to mitigate adverse traffic impacts.

B. Principal Permitted Uses
1. Single-family dwelling units, attached or detached.

2. Group homes for eight or fewer developmentally disabled or elderly
persons subject fo Article Hll, Section 1 of these Regulations.

C. Accessory Uses
1. Home occupations as specified in Arficle Ill, Section 2 of these
Regulations. :

2. Other uses that are clearly accessory or incidental to the primary
permitted uses and are shown on the approved Final Development Plan.

3. Wells, irigation canals, ditches and laterals, water supply and flood
control reservoirs (not elevated), subject to Article Ill, Section 4, of these
Regulations.

4. Underground utility lines, transformers, electrical substations, gas regulator
stations and simiiar facilities subject to Article Hll, Section 5 of these
Regulations.

5. Wireless communication facilities subject to Section 5.05 of the Municipal
Code of the Town of Columbine Valley,

6. Mother-in-law apartments as specified in Article lll, Section 6 of these
Regulations.

D. Minimum Areq, Lot Width, Height and Yard Requirements
1. Maximum height:

a. The maximum height shall not exceed thirty-five feet {35').

b. For height measurement see “Building Height" in Article Xlli, Definitions.

23



4/19/16

2. Lot areca :
As shown on the approved Planned Development plan, but the average
lot size not to be less than one-half acre (1/2 acre) without approval of
the Board of Trustees.

3. Setbacks
Unless otherwise approved by the Board of Trustees, the minimum
setbacks shall be as follows:
a. Front yard: 25 feet (25').
b. Side and rear yards: 15 feet (15').

Any yard adjacent to a public ROW is considered a front yard.

E. Maximum Density .
The maximum density in the RPD District shall be as approved by the Board of

Trustees.

F. Signoge
1. One "“for sale” sign per vacant lot with a maximum sign surface area of six

square feet (6 sg. ft.) and a maximum height of four feet (4’).
2. Other signs as shown on the approved final Planned Development plan.
G. Common Open Space

Open space shall be a minimum of 20 percent unless otherwise approved by
the Board of Trustees.

H. Access
Any development in the Residential Planned Development District must have

two full access points unless otherwise approved by the Board of Trustees.

24



4/19/16

SECTION é. RESIDENTIAL ESTATE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (REPD)
IRESERVED)
A. Intent- ' ' :
The Residential Estate Plonned Developmen’r District is intfended to occommodo’re
“large single family detached homes with spacicus lots. Any development in the -
- Residential Estate Planned Deveiopmen’r District must hove access on’ro two eXIshng
public streets. : : o

B. Principal Permitted Uses e '
1. Not ’ro exceed one smgle fomlfy dwelhng un|’r per Io’r excepT as prowded hereln

2. Group homes for elgh’f or fewer developmen’rolly dlsobled or eIderIy persons
subjec’r to AI’TICIG I, Section1 of these Regulations. :

3. HOme occupoﬂo'ns squjec’r to Ar’ricle Ill, Section 2 of these Regulofioné.‘

4, WeIIs irigation canals, ditches and laterals, water supply and flood control
~ reservoirs (not elevo’red) SUbjeCT ’ro Arhcle il, Section 4 of. ’rhe these Reguiations.

5. Underground uhh’ry Ilnes ’rronsformers elec’rncol substations, gos regulator -
stations and similar foo|I|’r|es subjec’r to Article lll, Section 5-of these Regulo’rlons

C. AccessomUse o B L
1. Home Oocupohons as specnﬂed n Arhcle I, Section 2 of these

Regulations.

2. Other uses that are cleary accessory or incidental o the prlmory
permlﬁed uses ond are shown on the approved Final Developmen’r Plan.

3. Waells, irrigoﬂon conols di’rches and Ioferols WoIersuppIy ond flood
con’rrol reservoirs- (no’r eIevoIeoI) Swbj ec’r to Arhcle i, Sechon 4, of. ‘rhese L
Regulo’ﬂons S ‘ S - '

4. :Underground uthy Imes Tronsformers electrical subs’rohons gas regu!ofor-' '
stations and similar faciliies subject to Article |ll, Section 5 of these .
Regulo’nons

5. W|reless commumcohon facil hes subject to Sechon 5 05 of the: Murnmpol
Code of Ihe Town of Columbme Valley. . -

6. Mother-in-law oporz‘men’rs as specified in Ar’ncle I, Sec’non é oI These
‘Regulo’nons

25



4/19/16

D. Maximum Density
Not to exceed one dwelling unit per acre.

E. Maximum Height of Structures
As approved on the Final Development Plan,

F. Lot Size
As approved on the Final Development Plan.

G. Cpen Space :
A minimum of thirty-five percent common open space unless otherwise approved
on the Final Development Plan.

H. Setbacks
As approved on the Final Development Plan,

l.  Signage and Lighting
As approved on the Final Development Plan.

J. Fences, Walls and Hedges
As approved on the Final Development Plan.

26



4/19/16

';SECTION 7. EQUESTRIAN PLANNED DEV LOPMENT (EPD] DISTRIC
~A, Intent

The intent of this section is fo provrde for ’rhe keeplng of horses in speC|f|<:d||y
desighated areas as well as the construction and use of equestrian focnr’nes
and to provide a detailed review of how these developments provide
essential services {water and sanitation, drornoge s‘rormworer erosion
confrol, fire ond police protection, etc.).

B. :_Pnncuool Permrr’red Uses
The principal permitted uses shall be as shown on the approved Plonned
Developmenr plan and include bu’r are no’r Ilmr’red ’ro

1.

4,

The riding, keeplng boarding ond showrng of horses in areds specrfled on
the Planned Developmen’r plan. ' o

Eques’rridn fdcili’ries swimming pools and tennis courts.

Dwelllng Un|’rs used exc:luswely by the equestrian cen’rer personnel No |
o’rher dwelling units are permiited.

Other similar uses as shown on the approved Final Developmen"r"'l?lon._ |

C. Accessory Uses

1.

Other uses and s’rruc’rures ’rho’r are cledrly occessory or incidental ro ’rhe prrmory o

.permn"red Uses ond are shown on the. opproved Planned Developmen’r plon

- ereless communlco’rron delIlhes subjecr to. Sec’rlon 5.05 of the Mun|C|de Code

of the Town of Columbme Valley..

Wells, imgation conols, ditches and laterals, water supply and flood control
reservaoirs (no’r eIevo’red) subjec’r to Ar’ricle iII Section 4 of these Regulorions

Underground UTIIITy I|nes rronsformers electrical substations, gos reguld’ror
stations and srmllor fdcrln‘res subjecf ro Ar’ncle I, Sechon 5 of rhese Regulo’rlons

Home occupdhons as specrfled in Arhcle III Sec’rlon 2 of ’rhese Regu!dhons

Morher in-law dpdr’rmenrs as speC|f|ed in Ar’rrole Il Sechon 6 of these
Regulations, :

Other uses that ore cledrly occessory or incidental to the prrmory permr’r’fed Uses
and are shown on the opproved Final Developmen’r Plan. :

27



411916

D. Moxmum Helqh’r ‘
Height: As shown on the approved Planned Developmen’r plan excep’r that
the maximum height shall not exceed thirty-five feet (35). For height
medadsurement, see “Building Height" in Article X, Definitions.

E. Setbacks
Unless ofhervwse opproved by ’rhe Board of Trus’rees ’rhe m|n|mum se’rbocks
shall be as follows
Fron’r 25 fee’r (25 ).
2 Reor 15 feet ( '}

3. Slde 1 foot (1'}) of setback per each Three fee’r (3 ) of building height.

F. Sl nage _
.~ One "for sale” sign per vacaont lot WITh a maximum sign surfoce area of six

squore feeiL {6 sq. ft.) and a maximum height of four fee’r (4 )
2. O’rher 5|gns as shown on the approved final Plonned Developmen’r plctn

':_G. Common Open Sooce S
Unless otherwise approved by the Boord of Trustees the mlnlmum common
open space shall be 20%.

H. Access :
Any developmen’r in the Equestrian Picmned Developmeni‘ District must have
access onto two existing arterial streets unless other\lee opproved by the
Board of Trus’rees o : :

28



4/19/16

SECTION 8. NON-CONFORMING USES (LAND AND STRUCTURES)
A. Intent
1. The intent of this section is o recognize that within zoning districts

established by these Regulations there exists land, uses of land, structures
and uses of structures that were lawful before these Regulafions were
adopted or amended, but which would be prohibited, regulated or
restricted under the provisions of these Regulations. These non-conforming
uses, land and structures shall not be enlarged, expanded, increased, nor
be used as grounds for adding other structures or uses now prohibited in
the same district,

2. Nothing in this section shall be interpreted to require a change in plans,
construction or designated use of any building in which a current building
permit was lawfully obtained from the Town of Columbine Valley or
Arapahoe County prior to the effective date of adoption or amendment
of these Regulations, provided construction was commenced within 60
days after adoption or amendment of these Regulations, or unless agreed
upon by the Board of Trustees.

3. Any use, structure and/or parcel of land that was used, erected or
maintained in violation of any previous zoning regulations shall nof be
considered as a legal, non-conforming use, structure and/or parcel, and
shall be required to comply with all provisions of these Regulations.

B. Non-Conforming Uses of Land
Any use of land, or use of a structure(s) that was lawful before these
Regulations were adopted or amended, may continue to exist even though
the use would be prohibited, regulated or restricted under the provisions of
these Regulations, subject to the following provisions:

1. Such non-conforming use of land or existing structures devoted to a non-
conforming use shall not be enlarged, expanded, exiended, increcased,
nor moved to occupy an area of land that was not occupied before
these Regulations were adopted or amended, or not altered to
accommodate non-conforming uses or other uses not allowed in the
district in which the structure was located. :

2. If any such non-conforming use of land or when a non-conforming use of
a structure is discontinued for any reason for a period of more than six
months, a subsequent use of such land or of such structure shall conform
to the provisions of these Regulations and amendments, unless the Board
of Trustees grants an extension of fime.

29



4/19/16

3. Any addifional land use and/or structure(s) associated with the non-

conforming use of land shali conform o these Regulations.

C. Non-Conforming Uses of Structures

1.

Existing structures devoted to a non-conforming use shall not be enlarged,
expanded, extended, nor dltered fo accommodate non-conforming uses or
other uses not allowed in the district in which the structure is located.

When a non-conforming use of a structure is discontinued or abandoned for six
consecutive months, any subsequent use of such structure shall conform to the
provisions of these Regulations, unless the Board of Trustees grants an extension
of fime.

Should a structure devoted to a hon-conforming use be damaged or destroyed
by any means, the structure may be reconstructed and the non-conforming use
re-established subject to compliaonce with the provisions of Paragraph E of this
section.

D. Non-Conforming Structures

1.

Should such non-conforming structure(s) or portion thereof be damaged or
destroyed by any means, or be declared unsafe by the Town Building Official to
an extent of more than 50 percent of its replacement cost, it shall not be
reconstructed except in conformity with the provisions of these Regulations. If the
reconstruction cost and/or area of reconstruction (whichever is less) is less than
or equal to 50 percent, the structure may be strengthened or restored to o safe
condition provided the original non-conformity is not enlarged, increased or
extended, and consfruction is commenced within six months after obtaining the
required building permii(s), unless the Board of Trustees grants an extension of

fime.

Should such non-conforming structure(s) be moved for any reason, for any
distance whatsoever, it shall conform to the provisions of these Regulations.

E. Repairs and Maintenance

Any non-conforming structure or a structure devoted to a non- conformmg use may
be repdired and maintained for ordinary upkeep. Such repairs and maintenance
shall not enlarge, expand, extend or increase the non-conformity in any manner.,
Also, such repairs and maintenance shall not exceed 50 percent of the current
replacement cost of the non-conforming structure or a structure devoted to a non-
conforming use. :

30



4/19/16

ARTICLE Ill

SPECIAL REGULATIONS

SECTION 1. GROUP HOMES

A. Policy
The Town accepts the iegislative statement in Section 303(2) of the Group
Home Act that the establishment of group homes is a matter of statewide
concern, and further that group homes which comply with the requirements
of this section and the Group Home Act are residential uses of property for
Zoning purposes.

B. Application
Any person licensed by the state to operate one or more group homes or, if
such licensing is not required for the establishment of a group home within
the Town. Such application must include the following information and be
submitted with a filing and administrative processing fee of $500 payable to
the Town:

1. The accurate legal name and {if not an individual) the form and state of
organization of the applicant.

2. The applicant address, telephone number, email address and facsimile
number.

3. If the applicant is an individual, age, date, place of birth and Social
Security number.

4. If the applicant is an entity, information described under Paragraph B.3 of
this section, regarding the officers, directors, managers or partners, and
persons who own a greater than 10 percent equity inferest in the
applicant, and, with respect to the applicant, its tax identification
number, and evidence that the applicant is qualified to do business in
Colorado. If the applicant is a non-profit organization, indicate its tax
status and the derivation of its principal funding.

5. If the applicant is represented by counsel, the name and address of
counsel together with counsels telephone number and facsimile number.

6. Alist of all civil judgments or criminal convictions for the five years

preceding the application involving any of the persons listed in
paragraphs 1 and 4 of this subsection, or their affiliates, and information

31



4119/16

regarding any such proceeding pending at the time of the application.
Minor traffic infractions need not be listed. A list of all administraiive
proceedings that have been resolved against any of the persons listed in
Paragraphs 1 and 4 of this subsection, or their offiliates, relating to
violation of Medicare or Medicaid statutes, or federal, state or local
licensing or operation requirements relating to the health care industry.

7. Information regarding the management of the applicant, including
professional licenses and business experience, especially with respect to
providing care in group homes.

8. Information regarding the compliance by the applicant with the group
home provider licensing requirements of the Colorado Department of
Public Health and Environment (CDPHE).

9. Information as to any other group homes in Colorado or elsewhere
operated by the applicant or its affiliates.

10.The address of the proposed group home and a detailed description of
any internal or external improvements that the applicant intends to make
to the group home before it is operational.

11.Evidence of compliance with all applicable building codes if the group
home will be a new construction, in addition to the requirements of the
section.

12.Proof of ownership if the proposed group home is owned by the
applicant. If the group home is not owned by the applicant, provide
proof that the applicant has the right fo acquire ownership and the
consent of the existing owner {with proof of such person’s ownership).

13.Evidence of compliance by the applicant and the facility with the
requirements imposed by the CDPHE, including (without limitation) a copy
of the inspection report from the local fire department. To the extent
either the CDPHE or the local fire department has identified any
deficiencies in the proposed facility, indicate the applicant’s plan to
correct the deficiencies.

32



4/19/16

14. A description of the nature and extent of public services to be requiréd by
the proposed facility and ifs residents. For example, and not by way of
limitation:

a. Will the proposed group home require any public transportation,
schooling or health care?

b. Are any exiraordinary police, fire protection or other needs
anticipated?

15.Information regarding other group homes within 1,000 feet of the
proposed group home.

16.Information as to whether the applicant proposes to meet with the
neighbors of the proposed group home prior to the public hearing
required in Subsection D of this section, and whether the applicant
requests the Town’s assistance in aranging such meetings.

17.Information showing that the group home will comply with Section 1210{a}
of Part 12, Parking, of the 1995 Model Traffic Code for Colorado
Municipalities.

18. A plan of operations, including a general description of the type of group
home proposed and the facilities and care to be provided; the hours of
operation and staffing; a descriptive floor plan specifying all area uses,
with fire control and fire evacuation descriptions; a description of special
care requirements and/or equipment of the group home or occupants,
including (without limitation) a plan for secure storage of drugs, if any; and
a description of general supervision procedures.

19.The proposed group home administrator’s(s’) night and day telephone
numbers, date of birth, Social Security number(s), and professional licenses
and qualifications,

20.Information (to the extent not submitted pursuant to the foregoing
subdivisions} sufficient to support the Board of Trustees' determination
pursuant to Subsection D of this Section;

21.Other information which the applicant believes may assist the Town in its

review of the application, or which may be required by the Town prior to
or at the public hearing required by Subsection D of this section.

33



4/19/16

C. Public Notice

Upon receipt of the fully completed application and the filing and
administrative processing fee, the applicant will comply with the notification
requirements as specified in Article VI, Section 3 of these Reguiations. In
addition:

1.

The Town Clerk will, within five days, forward a copy of the application to
those neighborhood associations known by the Town Clerk to include the
proposed group home or who may otherwise express an interest therein.

The Town Clerk will aiso forward a copy of the application to the Town's
Building Commissioner, the locdal fire district, police agency and the
CDPHE as deemed appropriate or necessary. Such persons may also
submit written comments to the Town Clerk at any time prior to the public
hearing to be conducted in accordance with Subsection D of this section.

Upon the receipt of any written comments pursuant to Subsection 1 or 2
of this section, the Town Clerk shall promptly forward a copy of such
comments to the applicant who may (but is not required to) respond to
such comments in writing.

The Town Clerk will publish a nofice of a public hearing and notify
adjacent property owners as specified in Arficle Vill, Section 3 of these

Regulations.

The Building Commissioner or his/her designee shall conduct an
investigation into the character and gualifications of the applicant and
the eligibility of the proposed property for group home use under health,
safety, fire and building codes, with assistance from such other applicable
agencies of the Town, county or state as the Building Commissioner may
reasonably request. The Building Commissioner or his/her designee will
submit his/her report to the Board of Trustees not later than seven days
prior to the scheduled public hearing, and the Town Clerk will provide a
copy of such report to the applicant and to persons to whom the
application was delivered pursuant to Subdivisions 1 and 2 of this
subsection.

D. Public Hearing

The Board of Trustees will hold a public hearing to approve the application,
to approve the application with conditions or to deny the application,
pursuant to the notice provided by the Town Clerk pursuant to Arficle VIII,
Section 3 of these Regulations. The application may be approved based
upon the following criteria:

34



4/19/16

1. No group home may be located within seven hundred ﬁf’ry' feet [750') of
any other group home.

2. The group home shali comply with all Town ordinances and codes,
including (without iimitation) building, fire, housing and zoning, and
applicable county and state statutes; ordinances; and administrative
regulafions. :

3. The group home will include at least six hundred square feet (600 sq. ft.) of
usable space for each bed for the residents and staff members. “Usable
space” inciudes only space that is reasonably accessible to the proposed
residents of the group home.

4, Any proposed new structure or structural changes to an existing structure
shall not be of an architectural design or style substantially inconsistent
with the character of the surrounding neighborhood.

5. No administrative activities or religious activities of any private or public
organization or agency shall be conducted on the premises of the group
home.

6. The applicant shall demonstrate that it has obtained, or, upon granting
the application by the Town, will be able to obtain, lawful ownership or
possession of the group home, and all appropriate licenses or
cerfifications required by the state or the county (including, without
limitation, agencies thereof).

7. The applicant shall demonstrate that there is adequate parking for such
use, and that the public services to be required by the proposed facility
and its residents are, or will be at the time the group home accepts its first
resident, available.

8. The applicant shall demonstrate that the plan of operations (as described
in Subsection B.18 of this section) is appropriate for the operation of the
group home and the protection of the health and safety of the
neighborhood residents.

9. The applicant shall commit to operating the group home in accordance

with the operating requirements set forth in Subsection E of this section, as
Subsection E may be amended from time to time.

35



4/19/16

E. QOperating Reguirements -
Any application approved hereunder is subject to revocation by the Town for
failure to operate the group home in conformance with the following
required standards:

1. The group home may not accept any resident until it has complied with
all county and state licensing and inspection requirements, including the
requirements of applicable police and fire agencies and the CDPHE.

2. The group home administrator must follow the required standards of any
state or county license. The group home administrator shall immediately
notify the police department of the Town of:

a. Any unlawful acts committed on the premises of the group home by
residents or staff members of the group home or other people;

b. Improper storage or use of drugs or other material violations of the plan
of operations;

c. Any unlawful acts of the residents or staff off the premises of the group
home;

d. Persons who make threatening communications to others or commit
acts dangerous to themselves or others; or

e. Incidents, such as fire or structural faiture or flooding, dangerous or
potentially dangerous to the residents.

3. The group home must be operated by the administrator(s) named in
Subsection B.19 of this section, who shall be on-site or on call 24 hours
each day. One or more telephone numbers must be made available at
the office of the Town Clerk and the group home at which the
administrator can be reached 24 hours per day.

4. The agpplicant may amend the plan of operation described in Subsection
B.18 of this section from time to time, subject to approval by the Board of
Trustees.

5. The applicant must provide the Town Clerk notice, in advance unless not
possible because of an emergency situation, of any change 1o the
information required by Subsection B of this section.

6. The group home must maintain sufficient staffing, supervision and
equipment/facilities so residents do not become undccounted for,
uncontrolled or lost, or commit mischief or criminal acts of any sort on or
off the premises of the group home.

36



4/19/16

F.

Inspection of the Premises

Group homes duly approved pursuant to this section shall be subject to
inspection by the Town for the purpose of verifying operation in conformance
with the requirements of Subsection E of this section, without notice at
reasonable hours and with reasonable frequency, by the Building
Commiissioner or his/her staff. Inspection may occur at any time if exigent
circumstances exist. Refusal of inspection requests, or interference with
inspections, shall be cause for revocation of the application approval.

. Transfer of the Group Home

The applicant {and any subsequent transferee) may transfer the group home
and the operation thereof to any other quadlified person, subject o an
application by such person meeting the requirements of this section, and the
approval by the Board of Trustees pursuant to this section. For the purposes of
this subsection, the term “transfer” includes the transfer of equity interest in
the applicant so that a person not previously owning 20 percent or more of
the applicant will then own 20 percent or more of the applicant.

Revocation of Application Approvdal

The Board of Trustees, upon no less than 15 days’' notice to the applicant and
to the public, may at a public hearing (the "revocation hearing™) revoke or
suspend any prior approval of the application for the following reasons:

1. Refusal of the applicant to cooperate with inspection requests or the
applicant’s interference with inspections made by the Building
Commissioner pursuant fo Subsection F of this section;

2. Revocation by the county or state or any agency thereof of any permit or
license obtained by the applicant in connection with operation of the
group home;

3. To the extent necessary, protection of the public health, safety and
welfare of the neighborhood.

Notice given to the applicant will specify the reasons for the revocation
hearing, and the applicant will be given the opportunity o contest the
proposed revocation.

Appeal .
The applicant may appeal any denial of an application submitted pursuant

to this section, conditions pursuant to which such application was granted or
any revocation or suspension of the application approval, to the district court
of the county pursuant to Rule 106 of the Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure.

37



4/19/16

SECTION 2. HOME OCCUPATIONS

A. Intent
The intent of this section is to allow limited non-residential uses in residential

units.

B. Limitations on Permitted Home Occupations
Any occupation operated in a single-unit dwelling may be operated only if it
complies with all of the following conditions:

1. Is operated in its entirety within the dwelling unit and only by the person or
persons maintaining a dwelling therein.

2. Does nothave an exclusive entrance from outside the dwelling unif.
3. Does not display or create outside the building any external evidence of
the operation of the home occupation, including but not limited to noise,

odor and fraffic. In connection therewith, no signs are permitted.

4. Does not have any employees or regular assistants not residing in the
dwelling unit.

5. Is not conducted in an unattached accessory structure.

6. Does not sell or offer for sale any article on the premises on a regular basis.
This restriction shall not apply to occasional non-continuous sales
fransactions.

SECTION 3. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Compatibility with Adjacent Property
Structural design and landscaping shall conform to the requirements of

Article Xl of these Regulations.

B. Covenants and Restrictions
New residential subdivisions or new multi-lot or multi-unit residential
development shall be governed, in part, by covenants and restrictions. The
covenants and restrictions shall, at a minimum, contain development
standards, design guidelines, design review procedures and amendment
procedures that must be approved by the Board of Trustees.

38



4/19/16

C. Mandatory Homeowners Association
All new residential subdivisions or multi-lot or multi-unit developments are
required to have a Homeowners Association (HOA) whose responsibilities and
authority shail include, but are not limited to, enforcement of the approved
design standards and maintenance responsibility for common open space
and common facilities. Commercial developments shall include an owner's
association unless otherwise approved by the Board of Trustees.

D. Fences, Walls and Hedges
1. Fences, walls and hedges shall be as approved on the final Planned
Development plan. Front, side and rear yard fences, walls or hedges are
discouraged on individual lofts.

2. Walls along arterial streets adjacent to the Town shall be a minimum six-
foot ('} high sound wall of brick construction that meets the following
specifications:

a. Caissons every twenty-four feet (24'}.
b. Reinforced concrete base barrier.

c. Pilasters that are two feet by two feet (2' x 2') and are reinforced and
faced with fractured block, masonry or stone.

d. Reinforced wall section that is twenty-four feet by two feet (24’ x 2').

e. Masonry coping covering the top of the wall section and a masonry
cap on the pilasters.

f. Stamped professional engineering designs to meet all geotechnical
foundation requirements.

3. Plans and specifications
All building permit applications shall be accompanied by plans and
specifications as required in Section 15.08.080 of the Building Code of
the Town of Columbine Valley.

E. Antennd and Salellite Dishes
1. No exposed radio, TV or shortwave antenna shall be erecied, placed or
permitted to remain on any lot or upon any structure erected thereon.

39



4/19/16

2. A satellite dish not exceeding eighteen inches (18"} in diameter is
permitted so long as the satellite dish is concealed from public view in a
manner deemed appropriate by the applicable architectural review
committee having jurisdiction over the property where the satellite dish is
located. :

F. Signs
No advertfising sign, billboards, unsightly objects or nuisances shall be

erected, placed or permitted 1o remain on any lof.

1. “For sale” signs shall not be larger than twenty inches by twenty-six inches
(20" x 26") to advertise the sale or rental of such lot or building upon which
itis placed, and shall only be located in the front, not the rear or side, of
the lot.

2 Political signs shall not be larger than twenty inches by twenty-six inches
(20" x 26"} and shall be located in the front, not the rear or side, of any lot,

3. Signs advertising a new subdivision, and the advertising period, shall be as
specified on the approved Final Development Plan

G. Grading
For new subdivisions or new mulii-lot developments, an approved grading

plan is required. For all other lots, adequate allowance for positive drainage
away from the structure shall be made. A minimum 2 percent slope
downward from the structure shall be employed for the first ten feet {10'). The
top of the foundation wall, at its highest point, may be increased one foot
(1') for every ten feet (10'} of front setback.

40



4/19/16

SECTION 4. WELLS, IRRIGATION, WATER SUPPLY, SANITARY SUPPLY, SANITARY
SEWER AND DRAINAGE FACILITIES

For any Planned Development, all public water, sanitary sewer and drainage
faciiities shall comply with the requirements of the water and sanitary sewer
providers and the Town of Columbine Valley Regulatfions as defined in Article X,
Section 2.B, 3 and 4 of these Reguiations.

SECTION 5. UTILITY LINES AND FACILITIES

A. For any Pianned Development, all electrical, gas, cable TV and felephone
meter, transformers, pedestal boxes or similar appurtenances shall be shown
on the final Planned Development plan. Design and construction shail
comply with the requirements of the service provider.

B. When electrical, gas, cable TV and telephone lines and facilities are
proposed in areas not covered by an approved or proposed final plat or final
development plan, the location and/or alignment of easements and facilities
must be approved by the Board of Trustees following a recommendation by
the Town Engineer. The Town Engineer may require plans and other
supporting documents prior fo making a recommendation o the Board of
Trustees.

SECTION 6. MOTHER-IN-LAW APARTMENT/DWELLING
A. A mother-in-law apartment/dwelling unit is permitted in all A, R-1, MUPD, RPD
EPD, and REPD zoned districts.

B. A mother-in-law apartment/dwelling unit is a portion of an existing or
proposed dwelling unit in which a member of the immediate family resides.
An immediate family member is one who is related to the family by blood or
marriage. The mother-in law apariment/dwelling unit shall not be used as an
income-producing asset; rather it is to be used when the need arises to
maintain the family unit.

C. A mother-in-law unit may be located within an existing or proposed dwelling
unit. Such dwelling unit may provide for separate kitchen facilities.

SECTION 7. GARAGE SALES

Garage sales are expressly prohibited, except and unless held under the
auspices of a lawfully organized HOA, if such HOA exists, and only for a period of
one day per calendar year. Garage sales on property not represented by an
HOA can be approved by the Board of Trustees or its designee. All signage
posted to advertise the garage sale must be erected and removed on the

same day as the garage sale.

41



4/19/16

42



4/19/16

ARTICLE IV

GENERAL PROCEDURES

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES |-V AND ZONING MAP

A. The Board of Trustees, upon its own motion or following the recommendations
of the Planning and Zoning Commission, may consider revisions or
amendments to Articles I-V of these Regulations or to Appendix A {Zoning
Map) after giving public notice of any proposed revision or amendment and
after holding a public hearing concerning the proposal. Prior to any final
action by the Board of Trustees, a public hearing shall be held by the
Planning and Zoning Commission.

B. Notice prior to a public hearing shall be as set forth below. At least 21 days
prior to the public hearing, the Town Clerk shall have a notice published at
least one time in the legal notice section of a general circulation newspaper
within the Town and posted at the Town Hall. The notice shall read as follows:

TOWN OF COLUMBINE VALLEY
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO

Notice is hereby given that the Town of Columbine Valley (name of
board: Planning and Zoning Commission or Board of Trustees) shaill
hold a public hearing concerning the type of amendment proposed
pursuant to the Town of Columbine Valley Zoning Code and Land
Use Regulations.

The public hearing shall be held before the (name of board) on
(date), at the hour of (time), or as soon as possible thereafter as the
agenda of the (name of board) permits, at (address of location of
hearing), or at a place otherwise specified by the Town Clerk.
Further information is available by calling

(303) 795-1434.

43



4/?1"9/1 6.

_ '-SECTION 2 AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES Vi- XIIII REVISIONS TO APPENDIX B,
~APPENDIXC,

A, Articles VI-XIIl may be omended by resolu’rlon at a publlc mee’rlng of
the Board of Trustees. Formal public notification is not required unless
recommended by the Town Atftorney.

B.  Prior. ’ro any final action by the Board of Trustees, any omendmen’rs ’ro
“Articles VI-XIl shall be considered by the Plcmmng and Zonmg -
Comm|55|on

C. -Appendlx B, Subdlwders improvemen’r Agreemem‘ Formo’r moy be
: rewsed by the Town A’r’rorney : =

i D Append|x C, Amendmen’r Hls’rory, sholl be mcun’rouned cnd the format
may be revised by the Town Clerk | ‘ .

E. Minor revisions such as fypographlcal punctuation, formcnti‘mg cmd
correction of errors of omission may be made by the Town Attorney,
Town Planner or Town Admlmsirdfor as mcsy be nec:essary or

: reqsombie :

44



4/19/16

ARTICLE V
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND OFFICIALS

SECTION 1. BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The Board of Trustees is the governing body of the Town of Columbine Valley. it
has final approval authority for the following land development applications:
A. Annexatfions

B. Planned Developments and any amendments thereto

C. Any other amendments to the Zoning Code (text and map)

D. Use by special review

E. Subdivisions

SECTION 2. PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

The Planning and Zoning Commission is appointed by the Board of Trustees and

is responsible for the review and recommendation (to the Board of Trustees) on
the following land development applications:

A. Annexations

B. Planned Developments and any amendments thereto

C. Any other amendments to the Zoning Code {text and map)

D. Use by special review

E. Subdivisions

F. Master Plan

The Planning and Zoning Commission is the authority for adoption of, and

amendments to, the Master Plan, with final ratification and approval by the
Board of Trustees.

G. Other Planning Studies
The Planning Commission may review and make recommendations on other
planning studies as requested by the Board of Trustee’s.

45



4/192/16

SECTION 3. BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

A. Established
A Board of Adjustment is established, the members of which shall be
appointed by the Board of Trustees. The word "Board” when used in this
article means the Board of Adjustment. The Board shall consist of nine
members as follows:

1.

The Mayor shall be an ex officio member of the Board with no vote,
except as provided below, and shall serve during his/her office tenure.

The Commissioner of Planning and Zoning shall be an ex officio member
of the Board with no vote, except as provided below, and shall serve
during his/her office tenure.

The other seven members shall be appointed from the Town at large by
the Board of Trustees. The members of the Board shall be appointed for
three years, with staggered terms of three years. A proper meeting will
require a guorum of five voting members. The concurring vote of a simple
majority of the Board shall be necessary to reverse any order,
requirement, decision or determination of any administrative official, or to
decide in favor of an applicant on any matter upon which it is required to
pass under any ordinance, or to effect any variation in such ordinance. In
the absence of a quorum, an ex officioc member may serve as a regular
member of the Board and vote on all matters before the Board. Under
such circumstances, the Mayor shall serve, and if he is unavailable, the
Commissioner of Planning and Zoning shall so serve. All hearings of the
Board of Adjustment must be held within 30 days after an appeal is filed.

The Board of Trustees may appoint not more than four alternate members
of the Board fo serve in the absence of any regular member of the Board.
The alternate members shall be appointed for terms of three years, with
staggered terms of three years. If a regular member is absent oris
otherwise unable to participate, the Chairman of the Board shall
designate which alternate shall serve until such regular member is in
attendance at the Board meefting.

The Board of Trustees shall appoint the Chairman of the Board of
Adjustment from among the non-ex officio members. The term of the
Chairman shall be for one year, with eligibility for reappointment. The
Board of Trustees shall also choose one of the non-ex officic members of
the Board as a Vice Chairman, who, in the absence of the Chairman from
any meeting of the Board, or his/her inability o act, shall perform the
duties of the Chairman. The term of the Vice Chairman shall be for one
yvear, with eligibility for reappointment.

46



4/19/16

6. All members of the Board of Adjustment shall be bona fide residents of the
Town, and if any member ceases to reside in the Town, his/her
membership shall immediately terminate.,

7. Members may be removed, affer public hearings, by the Board of Trustees
for inefficiencies, neglect of duty or malfeasance in office. The Board of
Trustees shall file a written statement of reasons for such removal. If
vacancies occur otherwise than through ex officio, the expiration of terms
shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term by the Board of
Trustees.

B. Meetings and Procedure
Meetings of the Board shall be held at the call of the Chairman and at such
other times as the Board in its rules of procedure may specify. A proper
meeting will require a quorum of five voting members,
The Chairman, or in his/her adbsence the Acting Chairman, may administer
oaths and compel the attendance of witnesses. All meetings of the Board
shall be open to the public. The Board shall keep minutes of its proceedings
showing the vote of each member upon each question or if absent or failing
to vote, indicaiing such fact, and shall keep records of its examinations and
other official actions. The Board shall have full power to adopt all rules for the
transaction of its business, the regulation of procedure before it and the
carrying out of the powers granted to it by the provisions of this article and
not inconsistent herewith.

C. Appeals Procedure and Hearing
Appedils to the Board may be taken by any person aggrieved by his/her inability to
obtain a building permit, or by the decision of any administrative officer or agency
based upon or made in the course of administration or enforcement of the provi-
sions of this arficle. Appedls to the Board may be taken by any officer, department,
Board or bureau of the Town, affected by the grant or refusal of a building permit, or
by other decision of an administrative officer or agency based on or made in the
course of the administration or enforcement of the provisions of this article. Such
appedal shall be made within 30 days of the date the building permit was issued or
refused by filing with the Town Clerk and the Board a notice of appeal specifying
the grounds for appeal. The Board shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of the
appeal and give due notice to the parties of interest and decide the same within a
reasonable time. Upon the hearing, any party may appear in person or by agent or
attorney,

47



4/19/16

D. Powers and Duties
The Board shall hear and determine appeals from and review any order,
requirement, decision or determination made by any administrative official
charged with the enforcement of this article. Such Board shall hear and
decide all matters referred to it or upon which it is required to pass under this
article. Such Board shall also have such other powers and duties as are now
or may hereafter be provided by law. In exercising the foregoing powers, the
Board may, in conformity with the provisions of law, reverse or affirm, wholly
or partly, or may modify the order, requirement, decision or determination
appealed from, and shall make such order, requirement, decision or
determination as in its opinion ought to be made and fo that end shall have
all the power of the Building Commissioner. The Board of Adjustment is
appointed by the Board of Trustees and has two primary responsibilities:

1. To hear and decide, grant or deny requests for variances from the
provisions of the Zoning Code except as provided in Paragraph E of this
section.

2. To hear and decide appeals from the ruling or interpretations of the
Zoning Administrator.

E. Limitation of Jurisdiction
Notwithstanding any provisions of this section, the Board of Adjustment is not
authorized to hear any appeals or requests for variances from the
requirements of an approved Planned Development. Such appeals and
variance requests shall be as provided in Article IXI, Section 4 of these

Regulations.

F. Varigances—Hardship
Where by reason of exceptional narrowness, shaliowness or shape of a
specific piece of property at the time of the enactment hereof, or by reason
of exceptional fopographic conditions or other extraordinary and
exceplional situation or condition of such piece of property, the sirict
application of any regulation herein adopted would result in peculiar and
exceptional practical difficulties to, or exceptional and undue hardship
upon, the owner of such property, the Board may authorize, upon an appeal
relating 1o the property, a variance from such strict application so as to
relieve such difficulties or hardship, provided such relief may be granted
without substantial defriment to the public good and without substantially
impairing the intent and purpose of this article.

48



4/19/16

SECTION 4. OTHER OFFICIALS

A.

Town Administrator/Clerk _

The Town Administrator/Clerk is the initial contact person for all lond
development inquiries. The Town Administrator/Clerk collects fees, issues permits,
maintains the records and minutes of Planning and Zoning Commission and
Board of Trustees meetings, and performs other administrative duties as
directed. The Town Administrator/Clerk also acts as the Zoning Adminisfrator and
is responsible for the interpretation and administration of the zoning regulations.

Town Attorney
The Town Attorney provides legal services to the Board of Trustees and other
boards and commissions in the Town.

. Town Engineer

The Town Engineer provides advice on engineering issues to the Board of
Trustees and other boards and commissions, and when directed, provides
engineering design of public facilities and construction inspection of public
facilities.

. Town Planner

The Town Planner provides advice to the Planning Commission and Board of
Trustees on land use issues, and presents the Planning and Zoning Commission’s
recommendations to the Board of Trustees.

Buiiding Commissioner
The Building Commissioner or his/her designee is responsible for the
interpretation and administration of the Building Code.

Zoning Administrator
See Town Administrator/Clerk.

49



4/19/16

50



5 _:4/1 /16
ARTICLE VI

LAND DEVELOPMENT APPI.ICATIONS AND PROCEDURES
SECTION 1. APPLICATIONS S |
A. There is no developmen’r process oiher ’rhon ‘rhe P!onned DevelopmenT .
;-process as set forth.in ’rhls Arhcle ond forword . o

B. AII lond use decmons wﬂl be governed under the application requwemen’rs :jﬁ
" and processing procedures outlined herein. The various: oppllco’rlon ophons E
within the Town consist of the followmg ‘ -
1. Annexations.
2. Plonned Deveiopmen’r
o3 MCI]OI’ omendmem‘s ’ro o F’Ionned Developmen’r
4. Minor omendmen‘rs To a Plonned Developmem
5. Use by spec:|ol review.
é. SubdiviS’ions The o'rocess ohol ‘procedures for preliminary and final
-subdivision plois is as specmed for prehmmory and final developmenT ‘
_ plcms . 3 L
7. Wo‘nvers and Exemptions.

C. The applicant is responsible for all costs of review and proc'e_sis:ing‘of :dIIOnoI_}.'”
- development applications including but not limited to, cosis-of legal,

engineering, planning and other review by Town employees and consultants. .

The applicant is also responsible for the costs of nofification, publishing and
recording. The Town Planner will prowde the applicant with-an estimate of

costs for the preliminary plan and plat stage of the land’ developmen’r

- process and for other dpplications. The applicant will pay the amount of ’rhe :
estimate at the beginning of prehmmory plan and plat stage, unlessa -
different method is approved by the Town Administrator. If the costs exceed -
the estimate, the applicant will pay the additional cost prior to the initiation
of the next stage. If there is a paositive balance that amount will be credited

o the nextstage, or refunded if the process has been completed: Any

L ou’rsfondmg cosfs WI|| be paid: pnor to recordmg of the flnoi plon/plo’r or’ o’rher -
documents.

51



4/19/16

SECTION 2. PROCESSING THE PRELIMINARY PLAN/PLAT
A. Pre Submittal Meeting '

1. A pre-submittal meeting with the Town staff is the first step in any approval
process. The purpose of the pre-submittal meeting is for the applicant to
explain the nature of the proposal and for staff 1o determine the
appropriate course of action to properly process such proposal. Staff may
be able to make that determination immediately or take the matter
under advisement and provide a written response to the applicant shortly
after the pre-submittal meeting and within a reasonable period of time.

2. To schedule a pre-submittal meeting, an applicant must contact the Town
Administrator who will schedule a meeting with the appropriate Town staff
based upon the information provided in the form.

B. Processing the Preliminary Plan/Preliminary Plat

The preliminary plan/plat is the first step in the Planned Development
approval process. When used in this Article the term preliminary plan and
preliminary development plan shall mean both the preliminary plan and
prefiminary plat unless otherwise specified. The preliminary plan contains
plans and supporting documentation sufficient to determine the intensity of
development, general design standards, traffic impacts, drainage
characteristics, and general street and utility layout. Unless waived by the
Board of Trustees, the preliminary plan must include all the owners’
contiguous land.

1. Submiital

a.

When an application for a preliminary Planned Development plan is
submitted, the Town Planner will review the plan to ensure that all
submittal requirements have been met.

The application must include all the configuous property of the owner
of the land proposed for development.

If the application is complete, the applicant will be nofified of the
number of copies required. Upon acceptance of the application the
Town Clerk shall schedule the case for a hearing by the Planning and
Zoning Commission. The hearing shall be scheduled for the first
available Planning and Zoning Commission meeting but not more than
45 days after the application has been accepted.

If the application is deficient due 1o failure to include major items, or if
there are major errors, it will not be accepted. The Town Planner will

52



4/19/16

return the oppllcohon with a copy of ’rhe subml’r’rof reqUIremen’rs
showing the items ’rhof need ’ro be correc’red

. e. Any oppllco’rlon ’rho’r mcludes a Wolver Exemphon or ony dewo’rlon

2

from any published standard will include a descnp’non of the deviation, )
the justification or reason for such deviation, and any other information
the applicant thinks is opphcoble for the Town to consider. If ’rhe '
approval or denial of a Waivers or Exemption is critical fo.the _
applicant’s proposal such Waivers or Exemptions must be approved by .-
the Board of Trus’rees prior 1o occeptonce of The prehmmory plan
application. S

Nofifications for F’Eor'inihg"ond Zoning':COrhmfssio'n Heoﬁng

At least but no’r Iess ’rhon 21 days prior ’ro ’rhe heorlng

"a. The Town Clerk WI|| publish o nohce of public heonng ina newspoper :::

of general circulation within the JUFESdICTIOﬂ of the Town.
b. The Town Clerk will,pos’r a hotice of public 'heoring at the ToWh Office.

e. The applicant will nohfy proper’ry owners wdhm 300 feet per no’nce B
requirements’ found in Ar’ncie VI, Sec’rlon 3, Publlc No’rlce Forms. -

g. A no’ﬂce sholl be pos’red by ’rhe opphcon’r on the properfy forwhlch
the land use application is made. The notice shall be as specmed in
Article VIII, Sechon 3, Publlc No’flce Forms.

Referrals ‘

The Town will conﬁrm that the digital copy of the plan, as submitted, is comple’re
and send g digital copy to each referral agency within 10 business doys of the
submittal. The referral agencies will be asked for a response within a reasonable
time. Staff will assemble all comments, and inform the applicant of the referral. -
comments. The applicant shall endeavor to resolve all outstanding comments -
and provide er’r’ren responses 1o the Town regarding disposition of all comments. -
The opphcon’r shall submit all requsred revised Planned Developmen’r documen’rs :
for staff review. - : : - :

Long Letter
The Town staff WI|| comple’re a-detailed review of the plan, the supporhng -

. documents - and responses from referral agencies and then.will send.the

applicant aletter stating the requ red ond recommendod rewmons or
requests for clorfﬂco’ﬂon :

53



4/19/16

5. Stoff report
Prior to the scheduled Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, the Town
Planner will prepare areport to the Planning and Zoning Commission on the
proposed preliminary plan, The report will be included in the Planning and Zoning
Commission packets and will provide the following information:

a.

e.

f.

A summary of the request and related information such as existing zoning,
character of the adjacent property, etc.

A description of the major elements of the plan.

A summary of the traffic study, drainage study, preliminary construction
plans and other engineering issues {including the Town Engineer's
report).

A summary of the referral comments.

Findings of fact.

Recommendations.

6. Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing

a.

The purpose of the public hearing held by the Planning and Zoning
Commission is to allow the Planning Commissioners and the public to
hear and comment on the staff report and the applicant’s
presentation. All questions and comments will be directed to the Chair.
Unless the hearing is continued to another date, the Chair can
determine that there has been adequate information provided by the
staff and the applicant, and, that all relevant questions and comments
from the public have been addressed. The public hearing will be
closed and one of the following actions taken.

1) Recommend approval of the preliminary plan and plat as
presented.

2] Recommend approval of the preliminary plan and plat with
conditions,

3) Denial of the preliminary plan or plat for reasons specified.

4) Continue the meeting to a date certain.

54



4119116

b. If the Planning and Zoning Commission approves the preliminary plan
with recommended revisions or conditions, the applicant shall submit ¢
letter to the Town Planner stating their position regarding the
recommendations or conditions.

c. If the Planning and Zoning Commission does not approve the preliminary

plan, the applicant has two options:

1} Attempt fo resolve and resubmit; or
2} Appedl within 10 days to the Board of Trustees in which case the
applicant shall provide a letter stating reason for such appeal.

d. Upon receipt of the required number of preliminary plan sets and other
requested materials, the Town Planner will schedule the case for the
next available Board of Trustees meeting.

. Nofifications for Board of Trustees Meeting

The Board of Trustee’s meeting on the preliminary plan and plat is not a
public hearing. It is a regqular or special meeting of the Board of Trustee's
which is open fo the public.

. Staff report

Prior to the Board of Trustees meeting, the Town Planner will prepare a
report to the Board of Trustees on the proposed preliminary plan. The
report will be prepared in sufficient time to be included in the Board of
Trustee packets and will include:

a. A summary of the request and related information such as existing
zoning, character of the adjacent property, etfc.

b. A description of the major elements of the plan.

c. Asummary of the traffic study, drainage study, preliminary construction
plans and other engineering issues (including the Town Engineer’s
report).

d. A summary of the referral comments.

e. Findings of fact.

f. A summary of the Pianning and Zoning Commission’s findings and
recommendations.

g. Recommendations.
55



4/19/16

9. Board of Trustees Action
The purpose of the meeting held by the Board of Trustees is to allow the
Trustees and the public to hear and comment on the staff report, the
recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission and the
applicant’s presentation. All guestions and comments will be directed to
the Mayor.

Unless the meeting is continued to another date, the Mayor can
determine that there has been adequate information provided by the
staff and the applicant, and, that all relevant guestions and comments
from the public have been addressed. One of the following actions can
be taken.

a. Approval of the preliminary plan and plat as presented.
b. Approval of the preliminary plan and plat with conditions.
. Denial of the preliminary plan or plat for reasons specified.
d. Continue the meeting to a date certain.

é. Refer the application back to the Planning and Zoning Commission
for reconsideration.

Approval of the preliminary plan and plat does not grant approval of the
development proposal. Approval of the development proposal is only
granted when the final plan and plat are approved. Approval of the
preliminary plan and plat indicates that the proposed uses and
development standards are acceptable for inclusion in the final plan and
plat submittal.

10.Filing the Preliminary Plan
If the Board of Trustees approves the preliminary plan, the applicant will
make any required revisions to the plan and submit a check set of prints
for staff's review. If staff finds everything in order, applicant shall sulbbomit
Signature Mylars to the Town for execution.

11.Expiration of the Preliminary Plan
The preliminary plan approval shall expire eighteen months after approval
by the Board of Trustees unless an application for final plan/plat approval
for all or a portion of the property included in the preliminary plan/plat has

56



4119716

been frled The Board of Trustees may grant an ex’rensron of ’rhe perrod of
expiration. : :

12. Recordlng - .
The Town Clerk or the dpplrcon’r rnory record or cause 1o be recorded
the Signature Myldrs as, soorr as possrble of’rer rhey hdve been srgned by
all requrred pdr‘rres s : ‘ ‘

SECTION 3 PROCESSING THE FINAL PLAN/PLAT ' _
A. When used in this Article.the term final plan, final developmenr plon or frndl
Planned Development plan shall mean both the final plan and final plat
~unless otherwise specified. Final plan approval constitutes the completion of
the land development planning process, and the final plan is the legal
document that governs the development. Unlike the preliminary plan, which
is a planning document, the final plan requires detailed and exact survey
data, detailed and complete engineering data, de’rorled Iondscoplng plans,
signage. and. lighting plans, architectural ilustrations and other plans,
graphics and documents as may be required. A final plan: dpphcohon moy
be submitted for all ora por’rlon of the site covered by the opproved
preliminary plan.: - : ,

B. Submittal

1. Staff shall review the final plan to determine conformance with the
approved preliminary plan. If the plan is in substantial conformance with

- the approved preliminary plan, staff shall schedule the dpplrcohon for the
-"_nex’r dvoulcrbie Pldnnlng and Zoning Comm|SS|on mee’rrng :

2. _'lf s’roff de’rermlnes any deviation is sufficient ’ro worrdn’r not oc:'oepfing ’rhe"
- application; staff shall provide the applicant with a list of additional |Tems
’ro be subml’r’red ond/or items to be corrected.

N 'C. Referrols

Upon dccepronce of the application, the Town Plcmner shdll refer ’rhe case
"ro the dpproprlo’re referrol ogencres ond HOAs

D;'_Norrflco’rlons

- The meeting of the Pldnnlng ond Zonlng Commrssron to consrder ’rhe Final
" Development Picrn/Fde Plat is not a public hedrlng The meeting is open to
‘rhe publlc

== STCIff repor’r S ' R :
- The Town Pldnner will prepare a report t6 the Plonnrng ond Zonlng
“Commission on the proposed final plan. The report erI be prepdred in

7



411916

sufficient time to be included in the Planning and Zoning Commission
packets and will include:

1. A summary of the request and related information such as existing zoning,
character of the adjacent property, etc.

2. A description of the magjor elements of the plan.

3. A summary of the traffic study, drainage study, preliminary construciion
plans and other engineering issues (including the Town Engineer's Report).

4. A summary of the referral comments.
5. Findings of fact.
6. Recommendations.

F. Planning and Zoning Commission action

1. The purpose of the public meeting held by the Planning and Zoning
Commission is to allow the Planning Commissioners and the public to hear
and comment on the staff report and the applicant's presentation. All
questions and comments will be directed to the Chair. When the Planning
Commission considers a final plan and plat, it is not a public hearing.
However the meeting is open to the public and members of the public
may comment during the appropriate section of the meeting. The
Planning and Zoning Commission may take one of the following actions:

d. Recommend approval of the final plan and plat as presented.
b. Recommend approval of the final plan and plat with conditions.
c. Denial of the final plan or plat for reasons specified.
d. Continue the meeting to a date certain.

2. If the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approvai of the final
plan with revisions or conditions, the applicant shall submit a letter to the
Town Planner stating his position regarding the recommendations or

conditions for inclusion in the packet to the Board of Trustee meeting.

3. If the Planning and Zoning Commission does not recommend approval of the
final plan, the applicant has two opftions:

58



4/19/16

a. Attempf to resolve and resubmit; or

b. Appeal within 10 days to the Board of Trustees in which case the
applicant shall provide a letter stating reason for such appeal.

4. Upon receipt of the required number of final plan sefs and other
requested materials, the Town Planner will schedule the case for a Board
of Trustees hearing.

G. Notfifications for the Board of Trustee Hearing

At least 21 days prior to the Board of Trustees Public Hearing:

1. The Town Clerk will publish a notice of the public hearing in a newspaper
of general circulation.

2. Town Clerk will post a notice of the public hearing at the Town Office.

3. Applicant shall notify adjacent property owners within 300 feet. The notice
shall conform to the requirements found in Article VI, Section 3, and
Public Notice Forms.

4. A notice shall be posted by the applicant on the property for which the
land use application is made. The notice shall be as specified in Article
VIIl, Section 3, and Public Notice Forms.

H. Staff report

Prior o the next Board of Trustee meeting, the Town Planner will prepare a

report to the Board of Trustees on the proposed final plan/plat. The report will

be prepared in sufficient time fo be included in the Board of Trustee packets
and will include:

1. A summary of the request and related information such as existing zoning,
character of the adjacent property, efc.

2. A description of the major elements of the plan.

3. A summary of the iraffic study, drainage study, preliminary construction
plans and other engineering issues (including the Town Engineer’s Report).

4. A summary of the referral comments.

59



419016

5 Findings of fact.

6. A summary of the Planning and Zonlng Commission’s findings ond
recommendations.

7. Recomm_endo’rions of s’rcn_‘f.
. Board of Trustees action

1. The purpose of the hearing held by the Board of Trustees is to allow the
Trustees and the public fo hear and comment on the staff report, the
recommendations of the Planning and Zoring Commission and the

applicant’s presentation. All questions and comments will be directed to
 the Mayor. ‘

Unless the hearing is continued to another date, the Mayor can determine -
that there has been adequate information provided by the staff and the
applicant, and, that all relevant questions and comments from the public
have been addressed. The Mayor then may close the public hearing and
one of ’rhe fo!lowing actions CQh be ’rdkén. '

Approval of the fanI plon and pIoT as presen’red

Approval of the final plan and plat with conditions.

Denial of the final plan or plat for reasons specified.

Continue the meeting to a date certain. .

Refer the application back to the Planning and Zonlng Comm|53|on for .
reconsideration. : : .

® .QO'ST?'.Of ¥

2. Upon approval of the final plon/pld’r the following shall be required pnor )
’ro the i issuance of ony permnL for cons’rruchon .

_ -'0 A digital copy of an execu’red and recorded Subdmder Improvements
Agreemenf if requwed ' :

- _'-.b'. A worron’ry deed, or dedication by plcﬁ, ‘fOr-.ony dedicated publicsi’res. |

C. A checkin the amount necessary for all ou’rsi‘onding fees and poymen’rs
due for review and processmg surveyor review and recording fees.

d. Safisfactory comple’non and opprovol of all engineering plans or other _
documents that were prewously deferred urm! after final Gpprovul of the Final -
" Plan or Final Plat. : o

" d. The number of copies of the revised plan as specified by the Town Planner. - -

60



411916

J. Final plon/plo’r _
If staff determines that the fIhO| Plonned Development plan and final plo’r
and supporting documents, are in conformance with all conditions of
approval and Town regulations, and contain the appropriate signature
blocks, the oppllcon’r sholl subml’r ’rhe Stgno’rure Mylars fo the Town for
execu’non ond recordlng e o

K. Recordlng :

~ The Town Clerk, or the qppllcun’r will record, or cause ’fo be recorded ’rhe ‘
final plan and, final plaf Signature Mylors deeds, the Subdivider -
Improvements Agreement and other documents as soon as possible after _
-they have been deemed approved by the Town Attorney. A digital copy of
‘the recorded Slgnafure Myfars will be provnded to the Town Clerk.

L. :_Effec.fi:\ie'DQTejof Fi.ndl.A'pprovdl‘ (Lee fo‘}w:riie)

~ SECTION 4. AMENDMENTS
A, Mgjor Amendments '
Major amendmentto an approved preliminary development plan or plo’r or
an approved final development plan or plat may be initiated by the owner
- of all or a portion of the property, or, by the Board of Trustee's when the
 Board has de’fer'min'e'd ’rho’r'fhe o.mehdmefn’r is in the public in’reres’r.

" 1. Any revision ’ro an cpproved prehmmory or f|nc|| plan that does no’r mee’r
the criteria for a minor amendment as defined in Porogroph B of this
section is con5|dered o major Qmendmen’r .

2. The major om_endmen_’(-process is the same process as for the final plan.

" B. Minor Amendments . -

A minor amendment fo an opproved prelimmory development plon or plo’r
an approved final development plan or plat may be initiated by the owner
of all or a portion of the property, or, by the Board of Trustee’s when the
Board has determined that the amendment is in the public interest.

1.. Criteria \ : o
The minor Gmendmen’r process may only be used for omendmen’rs chonges -

~and revisions to a prelsmmc:ry or final plan that has been determined to be of - '
“a minor engineering, planning or administrative no’rure that mee’r one or more -~

of the following criteria: ‘ . . L
a. Allinvolved lands must be part of a previously approved plcm. o

61



4/19/16

No additional lot, parcel or building site is created.

The lof, parcel or tract areas, street fron’roge or percent of common
open spoce shall no’r be reduced by more ’rhon 10 percen’r :

The revmons olo not conflict wu’rh any other ordlncmces regulohons

. codes orrules of iaw of the Town of Columbine Volley or ’rhe S’ro’re of.

g
h.

: _}Colorodo

":The revisions do not conflict wn‘h any mo;or requu'emen’r or condmon of
i’rhe opproved finai Plonned Development plan. -

Changes con5|s’r of typographical and spelhng errors or ’rronsposmons
incorrect seal, incorrect dates, monumentation incorrectly noted or
drawn, incorrect or missing interior bearing(s] and/or dimension(s) on
the drawing, or missing or incorrectly displayed arrows or symbols.

The revisions are street name changes only.

-The_réviSion is a plan title change only.

2. Process |
‘The process and approval procedures for a minor omendmen’r shall be as
specified for a final Planned Development plan except as follows:

a.

There are no referrals to outside agencies required. The Town Planner

may refer.the minor omendmen’r to m’reres’reol ogenues |f
oppropno’re S :

Public no’riﬁco’rion is not required The ToWn Planner m'dy request .
notification of all or some odjocem or surrounding proper’ry owners if
oppropno’re o _

UpOn rece!p’r of a complete application foro minor dm’endmen’r the
Town Planner shall schedule the cose for the first available meeting of -
the Board of Trustees. :

3. -Board of Trustees Action .
- The Board of Trustees may opprove The oppllcohon Wl’rh or without
~ conditions, deny the application or continue the matter fo a date certain.

62



4/19/16

4. Recording
Minor amendments may be recorded if so determined by the Town

Attorney, the Town Pianner or the Board of Trustees. If so directed, the
Town Clerk wilt record, or cause to be recorded, the amended plan.

SECTION 5. USE BY SPECIAL REVIEW
A. The processing of a use by special review shall be as specified for a final
Planned Development plan.

B. The submittal requirements for a use by special review are specified in Article
VIi, Section 5.B of these Regulations.

63



4/19/16

64



4/19/16

ARTICLE VII
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

The following article outlines the submittal requirements for each specific land
use application. An incomplete application will not be processed.

SECTION 1. ANNEXATIONS
A. Statutes Apply

All requests for annexation must comply with Colorado Municipal Annexation
Act of 1965 {CRS Section 31-12-101 et seq., as amended).

B._Submittal Requirements
1. A completed application form.

2. All documents required pursuant to the Colorado Municipal Annexation
Act of 1965.

3. A narrative stating applicant’s intent for annexation.
Note: If intent includes concurrent land development, the applicant shall
include the submittal requirement for the Planned Development as well.

4, Title policy current within 30 days of application.

5. Alist of abutting property owners within the Town of Columbine Valley
and within three hundred feet {300’} of any property boundary of the
Planned Development.

SECTION 2. PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS

A. Preliminary Plan/Plat
The preliminary plan/plat is the first step in the Planned Development
approval process. When used in this Article the term preliminary plan and
preliminary development plan shall mean both the preliminary plan and
preliminary plat unless otherwise specified. The submittal requirements are:

1. A completed Application for Land Development.

2. Statement or letter of intent containing:

65



4/19/16

q. Descrrprron of The proposed developmen’r
b. Time schedule for comple’rron of the project or each phose 1‘hereof

3. List of dbu"r’ring properties and properties within three hundred feet (300'),
including names dnd oddreSses of owners of record.

4. Title work current wr’rhrn 30 doys of submission.

5. Black line prints: (24" X 36”) dnd reduc’rrons (] 1"x17") Unless a d'iff:erenr srze
is specified by the Town Planner. The number of sets shall be as specrfred
at the Pre- Submlﬂqf meehng The prints shall show: : -

Q. Pe_rrme’rer--b.ounddry.
b. Exis’ring' topography. (Plat only)

c. Legal descnp’rron mcfudrng total acreage.

d. Location of existing (to remdin) and proposed s’rruc’rures (where dppllCdloIe)
with squore foo’roge hergh’rs ond uses. . .

e. Boundorres of dny lOO-yedr rood plorn or areas subjec’r to floodrng

f. Names of recorded subdrvrsron plo’rs of adjoining pld’r’red Idnd by
record name, date and number. :

g. DeveIOpmen’r Stipulations Chart [Article Vill, Section 2) (Plcrn only)
h. Tract Summary Chor’r (Ar’rrcle VIIt, Section 2), (Plat only)

i. Pedestrian wolkwoys p!ozos patios or similar gd’rhenng pldces dnd_-
Irnkdges ’ro publrc areqs and orher nerghborhoods e

. Proposed Io’rs blocks and ’rroc’rs (with square foo’rdge) s’rree’r ROW,'-
edsemen’rs and bounddry Irnes \ :

k. Al p‘roposed access points, circulation, parking and loading areas.

l. Location, hergh’r size of proposed signs, Irgh’rlng dnd ddver’rrsrng
devrces L _

m. Solid _woste_disposol areas and containers.

b6



4/19/16

r.

. Areas to be dedicated or reserved as common or public open space,
and other public facilities.

. Signature blocks, Certifications and Standard Notes (Paragraph C of
this Section).

. Building illustrations showing colors, material types, maximum heights of
structures and square footage. See Article Xl, Design Standards.

. Preliminary site lighting plan.

Preliminary landscaping plan that illustrates;

1)

2)

3)

Types of plantings (shrubs, trees and groundcover, and whether
deciduous or coniferous).

Buffering from adjacent land uses.
The Board of Trustees may require special note stating that the HOA

assume maintenance responsibility for landscaping on a portion or
all of the individual lofs,

Preliminary engineering plans showing proposed:

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

8)

Dewatering plan, if necessary.
Drainage, flood control, water quality.
Grading, erosion, sediment conftrol.
ROW cross sections (roads, walks, e’ré.).
Water supply, including fire conirol.
Wet utilities.

Proposed dry ufility service points.

Preliminary public improvements costs.

“Will serve” ietters for wet and dry utilities,

. Traffic study. {To be obtained by Town unless otherwise arranged. The

cost of the study is to be paid by the applicant).

67



‘4/_19/1 6

Ve Phose One dromoge study. -

‘w. Other Studies, Documents ond Data
At the option of the Town staff, other studies, documents or data may
be required. This requirement may include, but is not limited fo:

1.” A Fiscal Impact Analysis with the format and contents as specified
by the Town Planner and Town Treasurer. ' :

'2.. Noise Impact Study with The format ond contents as specrﬁed by
the Town Englneer _ L ‘

3. Schooil Enroliment and Sch__ool _Copoci’ry Projections.

X derrrenr of all outstanding fees for processihg, including fees charged

by the Town's consultants,

~y. Adigital copy of the entire submittal.

B. Final Plan

L

Completed Application for Land Development.

Revised statement or Le’r’rer-'c)f Intent Con’ro'i'ning:

“a. Description of. ’rhe proposed developmen’r

b. Time schedule for completion of ’rhe prOJec’r or eoch phose thereof.

List of abutting properties and properhes within three. hundred fee’r (300 )
including names of owners of record. _

Title work current wi’rhin 30 days of submission.
Block line prints (24" x 36”) and reduc’rlons (11" x 17"} unless a different size N

is specified by the Town Planner. The number of sels to be specified by the
Town Planner. The pnn’rs shalll show

a. Perimeter boundary.

b. Ems’rmg Topogrophy

. C. Legal descnp‘rlon mcludrng ’ro‘rdl ocreoge

68



4/19/16

d.

Location of emshng (’ro remdln) dnd proposed structures (where

- applicable), with squore foo’rdge and heights and uses.

Bounddnes of any 100-yedr flood piorn or areas subject to flooding.

Names of recorded subdlvrsron plats of od ormng platted Idnd by
record name, date dnd number ' _ N

_Developmen’r S’rrpuld’rlons Chor’r (Ar’rrcle VIII Sec’rlon 2)

Pedestrian wolkwoys pIdst and. po’rlos or S|mrldr gorherrng pldces

-andlinkages Jro publlc ‘areas dnd other neighborhoods.

Proposed lofs, blocks and tfracts {with square footage), street ROW
easements and bounddry lines.

AII proposed access, circuld’rion pdrking and loading areas.

Location, helgh’r size of proposed prOjec’r and street 5|gns s’rree’r

lighting flxrures and ddverhsmg devrces

Solid waste d|sp‘osorlrdreds ond con’rdmers‘.

. Areas to be dedrco’red or reserved as common or public open spdce '

and other public fdcrll’rles

. Sighature blocks cer’rlflcohons ond S’ronddrd No’res (Pordgroph C of ,

this Sechon)

lustrative buildihg elevation exhibits showing colors, material types -
and maximum heights of structures. If models are proposed the model
name, footprint and square footage. ShO” be shown. See Arrrcle X,
Section 1E. -

Final site lighting and pho’rorrre’rric':s plan with illustrations of all
proposed ﬁx’ru're's o

6. Londscope pldns in ’rhe same: formd’r as final plans showmg final Idndscoplng
plan and labels that illustrates plant species, including quantity, size and
location. include overaill plant list with quanfities, planting de’rculs ond show all
hardscape md’rendls and de’rdﬂs :

69



4/1 9/]:6

7 Englneenng ond cons’rruc’rlon documen’rs as specaﬂed in Poregroph L. 3
of this Section, unless a Deferment Exemp’rlon hc:s been opproved by the
Board of Trustee’s. :

8. O’rherS’rudles Documents and Data '
At the option of the Town staff, other studies, documen’rs or do’ro ‘may be
reqU|red This requirement may include, but is not limited to:

A Flscol Impact Analysis with the format.and contents as specmed by
’rhe Town Plcmner and Town Treosurer :

2 N0|se lmpqc’r S’rudy WlTh ’rhe formo’r ond con’renTs as specmed by the
Town Englneer

' .3 School Enrollmen’r and School Copocﬁy Proj echons

9. Payment of all outstanding fees for processing. |ncludlng fees chcrged by
the Town consultants.

10.A di@i}ql copy of the enﬁre submi-ﬂcai.
C. S|qno’rure Blocks ond Standard No’res

The followmg 5|gn0’rure blocks and s’rondord notes shall be incorporated onto
the cover shee’r of all Planned Developmenf plons and pld’rs

Siqno’rure Blocks
o STATEMENT OF OWNERSHIP AND CONTROL , L
Be it known that {(name of actual owners of the sﬁe) are’ ’rhe owners of the
‘property known as the (name of development), located at [address) in
Columbine Valley, Colorado, which property is described on this plan/plat and
- that as the owners of the property we have the legal right and authority to
request approval of this Plcmned Developmen’r from the Town of Columbine
Voiley »

ngned this day of | | ,.AD

Signature

. Title
o NOTARIES
-~ Stafe of Colorado
ss.
County of Arapahoe

70



419716

The foregomg instrument was Qcknowledged before me ’rhls __ dayof
,ADL by {printed name of owner[s) if by natural persons
- here insert name; if by person acting in representative official capacity, insert
capacity; if by officers of a corporation, then insert lhe fitle of said officers ond
the name of the corporation). '

My Commission expires

My address is
W|’rness my hand and official seol

Nolory Public
- .(Seol)

e PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION REVIEW PRELIMINARY PLAN
- This (preliminary development plan/plat) was reviewed by the Planning and
Zonmg Commission of the Town of Columbme Valley, Colorado, this ____ day of
, AD

- Altest: .
Town Planner

® BOARD OF TRUSTEES APPROVAL PRELIMINARY PLAN .

" This (prellmmqry development plan/plat} was approved by the Board of
Truslees of the Town of Columbine Volley, Colorado this .~ day of
- , AD i

Attest
~ Town Clerk

e PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION REVIEW : :
- This final development plan/plat was reviewed by the Plonn:ng and Zohing
Comm|55|on of the Town of Columblne Volley, Colorodo ’rh|s - dayof
- , AD ,
" Chcnrperson - . o Wllness

« BOARD OF TRUSTEES APPROVAL :
This. final developmenl plon/plol wos opproved by lhe Board of Truslees "

of the Town of Columbine Volley Colorodo Ih|s a doy of
, AD S
~ Mayor: Town of Columbine Valley' ‘Attest: Town Clerk

71



4/19/16

COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER'S ACCEPTANCE

-~ This {plan/plat} was accepted for filing in the office of ’rhe'CIerk and

Recorder of Arapahoe County, Colorado, on rhls dcry of
AD
Reception Number Time ____.Book__ Page
Date
County Clerk

2. Siendord Notes

The following notes shall be required on the cover sheeT of: orll Plcrnned
DeveropmemL final plons/plo’rs : :

THE OWNER(S) OF THE (NAME OF PLANNED DEVELOPMENTI KNOWN AS .

(PROJECT/SUBDIVISION NAME), THEIR RESPECTIVE SUCCESSORS HEIRS -
AND/OR ASSIGNS AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING: :

Imgrovemenis Comgleied
That no development, construction or |mprovemen’rs shall be certified for

occupancy unless and until all required public improvements, as defined

~within the Subdivider Improvements Agreement for this (plan/plat) are in

place and accepted, or a deferment hes been opproved by the Town of

Columbine Volley

~ Emergency and Service Vehicle Access :

The emergency and service vehicle access ecrsemem‘(s) shown hereon
shall be constructed and maintained by the owner and subseguent
owners, heirs, successors and assigns or HOA. In the event that such

'_cons’rruchon and maintenance is not performed by said owner, the Town
- of Columbine Valley shall have the right to enter such easements and

- perform necessary work, the cost of which said owner, herrs SUCCESSOrs

' and assigns agree to pay upon billing.

Siorm Drainage Easements ' '
When stormwater dromoge easement(s) are requwed the followmg

Icrngucrge shall oppecrr on the face of the plat:

'_.".“Theg's’rormWG’re'r drainage easement(s} shown hereon is (are) for the
- purpose of access, operation, maintenance, repair and alternation of the

stormwater guantity and quality management system/facilities included

72



4/19/16

within the said easement(s). The operation, maintenance and repair of
such stormwater management system/facilities shall be the responsibility
of the owner and subsequent owners, heirs, successors and assigns or HOA
(Homeowners Association). In the event that the operation, maintenance
and repair of the stormwater management system/facilities are not
performed by said owner, the Town of Columbine Valley shall have the
right to allow the HOA to enter such easement(s} and perform the
necessary work, the cost of which said owner, heirs, successor and assigns
agree to pay upon billing. Any claims and resulting judgments for
damage to downstream properties caused by the lack of adequate
maintenance being performed by the said property owner shall be borne
solely by the said property owner. The property owner hereby releases,
indemnifies and holds harmless the Town of Columbine Valley from any
and all liability resulting from the lack of adequate maintenance of said
stormwater management system/facilities. No buildings, fills, excavations,
structures, fences or other alterations shall be constructed within ¢
stormwater drainage easement(s) without the express written consent of
the Town,"

o Street Mdintenance
It is mutually understood and agreed that the dedicated roadways shown
on this plat/plan will not be maintained by the Town until and unless the
streets are constructed in accordance with the subdivision regulations in
effect at the date construction plans are approved, and provided
construction of said roadways is started within one year of the
construction plan approval. The owner and subsequent owners, heirs,
successors and assigns or HOA shall be responsible for street maintenance
until such time as the Town accepts the responsibility for maintenance as
stated above.

¢ Landscape Mdintenance
The owners, their successors and/or assigns in interest or other entity other

than the Town of Columbine Valley shall be responsible for maintenance
and upkeep of the perimeter fencing, landscaped areas and sidewalks
within the public ROW adjacent o this Planned Development

The owners, their successors and/or assigns in interest other than the Town
shall be responsible to maintain all common open space and other
landscaped areas associated with this development.

+ Sight Triangle Maintenance/Clearance
Corner vision clearance requirement: No fence, wall, hedge, shrub,
structure or other obstruction to view that is more than forty-two inches

73




411916

(42") in height shall be erected, placed or mainfdined within a friangle
formed by the point of intersection of lot lines abutiing a street and the
points located along the lot lines thirty feet (30') from the point of
intersection,

» Drives, Parking Area and Utility Easements Maintenance
The owners, their successors and/or assigns in interest other than the Town
of Columbine Valley shall be responsible for maintenance and upkeep of
any and all drives, parking areas and easements {i.e., cross access
easements, drainage easements, etc.).

« Private Street Maintenance (If Applicable)

It is mutually understood and agreed that the private roadways shown on
this plat/plan that are not in conformance with the Town of Columbine
Valley roadway design and construction standards will not be maintained
by the Town unfil and unless the streets are constructed in conformance
with the Town's regulations in effect at the date of the request for
dedication. The owners, developers and/or subdividers, their successors
and/or assigns in interest, or HOA shall be responsible for street
maintenance until such time as the Town accepts responsibility for
maintenance as stated above.

o Building Permits/Certificates of Occupancy
No building permits or Certificates of Occupancy (CO's) will be approved
or issued until the Town Administrator or Town Planner have determined
that the structures proposed in the building permit applications or
Certificate of Occupancy are consistent with the structural elevations
contained in the approved Final development Plan.

¢ Final Plat Cross-Reference
There is an approved final plat for the property covered by this Planned
Development plan. The final plat contains survey data, ot dimensions,
easements dimensions and purpose, special and standard notes, and
other information relevant to the property. The final plat is recorded in the
office of the Arapahoe County Clerk and Recorder, Book ____, Page .

74



4/19/16 .

D. Final Plat
The Final Subdivision Plat is the document that contains the legal description
of the surveyed boundaries of the property being platted with angles,
distances and bearings, the surveyed lot boundaries, the parcel and fract
boundaries and purpose and all reguired certifications and S|gnc|’rures The
final plat shall be submitted and include the followmg PR

1. Revrsed Appllco’non for Land Developmen’r ond rewsed Le’n‘er of In’ren’r |f
necessory :

2. Plat Map. Bleckllne prints (24"x36") and reduchons (1 T"x] 7") unless a _
different S|ze has been specmed by the Town Planner. The Plat Map shall -
show o :

a. Penme’rer Boundary

b. anory con’rrol point descnp’non (ties to con’frol pom’rs ’ro WhICh oII
d|men510ns angles, bearings, etc., related to pIoT) o

C. Locohon cmd descrrphon of all monuments. |

d. _:Lo’r Block and Troc’r boundory lines, right of way(R-O- W) I|nes of s’rree’rs
easements and- o’rher rlgh’rs -of-way, proper’ry llnes of readenhol lots, with
.dlmen5|ons o § L g

e. Becrings, deflection angles, radii, arc and central angles of all C_ur_\'/'e:s.' ]
(Accurate control survey which balances and closes within State:limits).

f, '_.CIosu"re"Colcul'o-’r'ibh's; |

Q. Toiol ocreoge ond surveyed legal descnphon

h. chme cmd R O W W|d’rh of each s’rree’r & o’rher R O W

i Lo.cohon, dlmenSIons and purpose of _eosemems. :

. Numbers to identify each block and lot.
k. Tract Summary Chart (Article VI, Section 2.~

I.- Name of record owners of adjacent unplo’r’red.Icmd..'-__:___- '

L5



4119716

m. Reference to recorded subdivision plat of adjoining platted land by

n.

O.

P.

g.

record name, date and number.

Pedestrian walkways and linkages to public areas and other
neighborhoods.

Areqs to be dedicated or reserved as public or common open space,
school sites and other public facilities.

Boundaries of any 100 year floodplain or areas subject to flooding.

Certifications and Standard Notes (Paragraph C of this Section).

3. Engineering Plans and Documents

a.

b.

Dewatering plan, if necessary.

Drainage, flood control and water qudality.

. Grading, erosion and sediment conftrol. Note: Grading plans shall indicate

the highest point of finished grade of the foundation for any structure so
maximum height can be determined.

.ROW cross sections {roads, walks, etc.}).

. Water supply, including fire control.

Wet utilities.

. Dry utility service points, pedestals, transformers, etc.

. Pavement design report for public and private streets.

Phase Three drainage study.

Construction plans (streets and drainage).

4. Final Landscaping Plans as specified in Article VI, Section 2B unless provided
with a final development plan.

5. Building elevations as specified in Article VI, Section 2B unless provided with a
final development plan.

76



4/19/16

6. Copies of final special agreements, conveyances, restrictions or covenants
unless provided with a final development plan.

7. In addition to the signature blocks and standard notes specified in Section C
of this Article, the final plat shall contain the following signaiure blocks and
standard notes.

o CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION

o {I, We)}, printed name of owner(s)), being the owner|(s} of the land
described as follows: {insert legal description of land being platted and/or
subdivided and include area in acres to two decimal places) in the Town
of Columbine Valley, Colorado, under the name of (complete name of
development in capital letters), have laid out, platted and/or subdivided
the same as shown on this plat and do hereby dedicate to the Town,
District or HOA the streets, alleys, roads and other public areas as shown
hereon and hereby dedicate those portions of land labeled as easements
for the installation and maintenance of public utilities as shown hereon.

In witness whereof (printed name of the owner) has (have) subscribed (his,
her, their) name(s) this day of ' . AD

By:

Owner(s)

Notaries

State of Colorado
5S

County of Arapahoe
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of
, AD , by {printed name of owner (s}: if by natural

persons here, insert name; if by person acting in a representative official
capacity, insert capacity; if by officers of a corporation, then insert the title of
said officers and the name of the corporation).

My Commission expires:

My address is

77



4/19/16

Withess my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

(Seal)

o TITLE VERIFICATION
I/We {name}, a (choose one: qualified fitle insurance company, title
attorney or attorney at law), do hereby certify that [/we have examined
the fitle of land described hereon and that title to such land is in the
owner's hame, free and clear of dll liens, taxes and encumbrances,
except as follows:

(Title of Official) Title Insurance Company

(Title Attorney) or {Attorney at Law)

o MORTGAGEE'S APPROVAL
In withess whereof mortgagee has subscribed its name this day of
, AD

Notarial

State of Colorado
55.

County of Arapahoe
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of
, AD . by {printed name of mortgagee: if by natural

persons here, insert name:; if by person acting in a representative official
capacity, insert capacity; if by officers of a corporation, then insert the
title of said officers and the name of the corporation).

My Commission expires
My address is

Witness my hand and official seal,

78



4/19/16

o TOWN ENGINEER REVIEW
The Town Engineer has reviewed this plat and found it to be in general
conformance with the Town's engineering standards. The sighature of the
Town Engineer does not absolve the applicant’s design engineer
responsibility to provide adequate and professional design.

Date

Town Engineer

o CERTIFICATE OF TAXES PAID
|, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the entire amount of faxes
and assessments due and payable as of upon all parcels of real
estate described on this plat are paid in full. Dated this____ day of
. AD

Treasurer of Arapahoe County, Colorado

o SURVEYING CERTIFICATION
|, (name of surveyor}, aregistered professional land surveyor in ’rhe State of
Colorado, do hereby certify that the survey represented by this plat was made
under my supervision and the monuments shown thereon actually exist and this
plat accurately represents said survey. This survey prepared in accordance with
the Manual of Instruction for the Survey of Public Lands, 1977 except as modified
by Colorado Revised Statutes 38-51-101 through 103, as amended.

R.LS. No.

Signature

1. The surveyor shall seal the plat so that the seal does not obscure any
information shown on the plat.

2. A bullet is required for each general note required in these Regulations.

3. Where the exterior boundary lines of the plat shows bearings and
distances that vary from those recorded in adjoining plais or surveys, a
hote shall be placed along those lines, in parenthesis, stating the
recorded bearing and distance, and the reception number or plat
book and page of the adjoiners, as shown in the following example:

N41 degrees 127°29"E {recorded as N41 degrees, 10'23"E in Book 98
at Page 98).

79



4/19/16

4. With the submittal of the final Mylars, an address plat is required. The
Address Mylar is an exact duplicate of the final plat exhibit with the
addition of a label that reads “address plat” and labels the addresses
for each lot or tract in the subdivision. (The Address Plat needs 1o be
signed by the owner(s) of the property and the signature(s) needs to
be notarized.) The Address Plat Mylar shall be a photographic mylar or
equivalent {prepared such that the text/line work does not bleed, flake
or scratch off) on 24" x 36" single/double matte mylar. The drawing
shall be in uppercase sans serif with a minimum 12-point font unless
otherwise approved by the Town Planner or designee. The Address Plat
Mylar is routed the same as the final plat mylar but is not recorded with
the final plat, When multiple sheets are needed, a cover sheet may be
required that shows a composite of the subdivision.

5. No plat shall include copyright restrictions.

6. All technical reports shall have been approved or concurrently
approved with the plat.

7. All other applicable sections and requirements are completed as
deemed necessary by the Board.

8. Signature Format Mylars are required.
SECTION 3. MAJOR AMENDMENTS
A. The submittal requirements and processing of a major amendment shall be

the same as for the original final plan/plat.

B. Any amendment not meeting the criteria of a minor amendment shall be
considered a major amendment.

SECTION 4. MINOR AMENDMENTS

A. Submittal Requirements
1. Application form.
2. Lefter of Intent .

3. Description of change with supporting documentation shown and
highlighted on the previously approved Planned Development plan.

80



4/19/16
4. Ahy o’rher do'ourhen'ts'::required by the Town Planner. |
_C Processmg

The processing of a Minor Amendment is specn‘led in Ar‘ncle VI, Sechon 4B of
These Regulo’nons : :

SECTION 5 USE BY SPECIAL REVIEW

A. Intent - '
Within ’rhe A {Agriculture) and CC (Coun’rry Cfub) zonlng districts there are certain uses
that require special approval by the Board of Trustees. Because these uses may have
“adverse impacts on adjacent property, the neighborhood or the community, the Board
of Trustees can impose conditions on the approval of these uses or can deny the use.

B. Submittal Requirements
The applicant shall submit the following. The number of cop|es and format
B (dlgHol ond/or hord coples} shall be as specmed by the. Town Planner.

| 1. Comple’red opphco’non form
. 2. Legal descnpho‘n.
3. Narrative detailing all uses requiringoporovo'll.l
4. Ti’rlew‘ork ;oo_rrenf within 30 days of submission.
5. Current sné:-pidh showing current ohd‘ prooosed uses.
6 '.S’rruc’rure eievohons and proposed modlflco’rlons
7. Londscope plan. | |
8. Names and addresses of Io.ndownersof property. within 300’
9.__:'-Q.:fher cri’reﬁo deemed oppj’_or:):riio_’_re; b,y.:’r,he Town Planner.
C. Process

The processing of a Use by Specml Revnew shail be as specmed for a Finai
Planin Article VI, Section 3 of These Regulations.

81



4/19/16

82



4/19/16

ARTICLE VI
FORMS AND NOTIFICATIONS

SECTION 1. APPLICATION FOR DEVELOPMENT

APPLICATION FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT
TOWN OF COLUMBINE VALLEY, COLORADO

Date

Name /Address/Contacts of Applicant

(Signature)

Telephone Fax

Email Address

Name/Address/Contacts of Owner (If different
from applicant)

(Signature) Note: Owner's signature indicates applicant
may represent owner on all maiters pertaining to
this application.

Telephone
Fax
Email Address

Type of Application:

___ Annexgtion

Flanned Development
Preliminary Plan

Rezoning

Final Plan

Major Amendment

Minor Amendment

Use by Special Review

Other

Property Description:

Location of Property
Acreage
Existing Zoning
Proposed Zoning
Existing Land Use
Proposed Land Use

Brief description of the request:

Date of Complete Application

OFFICE USE ONLY

Fees or Initial Deposit Paid $

Comments:

83




4/19/16

SECTION 2. DEVELOPMENT STIPULATIONS AND TRACT SUMMARY CHART

DEVELOPMENT STIPULATIONS CHART

Standard

Residential

Commercial

Acreqge

Density (DU's Acre)

Floor Area Ratio

Building Coverage

_—

Open Space
Public or Common

Building Height (Maximum]

Setbacks

From Street ROW

Front

Side

Rear

Minimum Distance
Between Buildings

Parking (Off-Street)

With On-Street Parking

Without On-Street Parking

Signage (Numbers and
Dimensions)

Project Identification

Tenant Identification
(Ground Mounted)

Tenant Identification
(Fascia or Walll)

Directional Informational

Temporary

Walls, Fences, Hedges
{Materials and Dimensions)

North Property Line

East Property Line

South Property Line

West Property Line

Exterior Lighting (Height
and Type)

84




4/19/16

. TRACT SUMMARY CHART

TRACT | AREA (SF) | AREA (AC) USE OWNERSHIP | MAINTENANCE

SECTION 3. PUBLIC NOTICE FORMS

A. Nofice to Property Owners
At least twenty one days prior to a public hearing, a written notice shall be
sent by certified mail, by the applicant, to all owners of property within 300
feet of the site for which the land use application is made. Return receipts
shall be submitted with a list of all area property owners to the Town Clerk's
Office prior to the hearing date. The written notice shall contain the foliowing
information:

1. The entire notice of public hearing ouilined in Subsection C, including
the legal description; and

2. Brief narrative outlining the proposed land use application before the
Planning and Zoning Commission or Board of Trustees.

B. Notice for Sign
At least 21 days prior to a public hearing, a notice shall be posted by the
applicant on the property for which the land use application is made. The
notice shall consist of at least one sign facing an adjacent public ROW in a
manner that provides the most visibility to the public. These notices shall be in
the form of signs measuring not less than two feet by three feet {2' x3’) and
on posts no less than three feet (3') above the ground. All lettering shall be
clearly legible from the ROW the sign faces with lettering a minimum of three
thee inches (3") high (except the lettering on the legal description may be
one inch {1”) high). These notices shall read as specified in Subsection C.

85



4/19/16

C. Notice Form
Notice is hereby given that the Town of Columbine Valley {(name of
board: Planning and Zoning Commission or Board of Trustees) shall hold
a public hearing concerning (type of application request), located on
property described in Exhibit A, and generally located at (distance
and direction of nearest major intersection) pursuant to the Town of
Columbine Valley Zoning Regulations.

The public hearing shall be held before the (hame of board) on (date), at
the hour of (time), or as soon as possible thereafter as the agenda of the
(name of board) permits, at (address of location of hearing), or at a place
otherwise specified by the Town Clerk. Further information is available by

calling (303) 795-1434.

ALL INTERESTED PERSONS MAY ATTEND
EXHIBIT A
(legal description)

86



. 419716

SECTION 4. SUBDIVIDER IMPROVEMENTS AGR-EEMEN‘T‘\ .

-Subdlvrder Improvemen’rs Agreemen’r shoi! be preporeol by ’rhe Applrcomr
‘based on the form provided in Appendix B of These Regulations and'shall
stipulate improvements to be completed within the proposed subdlvrsron as
'de’rermlned bythe Boorol of Trustees. - -

B. Conren’rs of Subdivider Improvements Aqreemen’r

The Subdivider Improvements Agreemen’r sholl mc:lude but not be Ilmr’red to,
the following: S

A complete descrrphon of ’rhe |mprovemenrs to be comple’red and the schedule
for completion of these improvements. The |mprovemen’r list shall be mcFuded as
an exhibit to ’rhe ogreemerr’r

A provision that if o’r ony time there is orbreoch of such ogreemem, the To_wh of :_

~ Columbine Valiey may withhold approval of all building permits, construction o
permits and certificates of occupancy within ’rhe subdivision until such-breachor =~

breaches have been cured.

A performance guoron’ree covering all cos’rs reio’red to construction as set forth:
-in the improvements list. The guoron’ree sho!l be one of the following:

o An irevocable letter of credr’r
. b. Completion performance bonol
- ¢. Cash escrow.

d. Other guarantees oocep’roble ’ro the Town of Columbrne Volley

. An agreement o provide the Town with a reproducible Mylar of the as-

constructed improvéments certified by a Colorado licensed Professional

. Engineer stating the |mprovemen’rs were completed in general

6.

conformance with ’rhe opproved cons’rruc’non plons and specrfrcd’rrons‘for
the proreci : :

. O’rher relevant condmons or resfrrc’rrons |mposed upon the subdrvrder as o :

condition of opprovol ond agreed to by the applicant.

Signature blocks for the subdivider and the Mayor of Columbine Valley.

('3.'E Format :
* . The format for The Subdivider Improvemen’rs Agreemen’r is mcluded as
Appendix B of these Reguloirons :

87



4/19/16

88



41916
ARTICLE X
RELATED PROCEDURES

SECTION 1 VACATION OF STREETS, RIGHTS OF WAY AND EASEMENTS

A. Submittal Requirements
“The submittal requwemem‘s for vacation of porf or oII of o s’rree’r right of way
-or eesemen’r are-as follows :

k 1.‘ Poymen’r of cppl:cohon fee as eshmc’red by ’rhe Town Plonner

2. A d|g|‘rc1I copy and hard copies ds specmed by the Town Planner. of the
- followmg

a. .Aimop entitled, "A vacation of (name of street or easement).” Include
-on or attach to the map a legal description of the street, ROW or
;_3'-easemen’r or portion thereof, 1o be vacated. Cross-hatch or otherwise
- illustrate the portion to be vorcc:t’red and |nd|ccr’re all lots adjoining the
portion to be vacated along W|’rh ’rhe hames of ’rhe owners of such lots,
plus their mailing address. : S

‘b A letter assuring that no proper’ry will be Ieﬁ‘ without proper QCcCess. due
- :To ’rhls vocohon :

cA pe’rr’non S|gned by at least f|f’ry percenT (50%) of the proper’ry owners
S ;obuﬂlng the street, rrgh’r of way, or ecsemen’r to be voco’red

d. A copy of a letter to eoch obu’r’nng properfy owner: ’rho’r did not sign
the petition stafing that a request for voco’rron of the street, right of
way, or easement has been submn"red ond proof ’rho’r eoch letter was
- sen’r by certified mail. : N
B Process : :
.. Upon de’rermmlng ’rhc:r’r the crppllcohon for vacation is complete, the Town
" Planner shallinform the applicant-as to, the. number of hard copies of the

“map, if any, that are required. The Town Clerk shall schedule the request
for'a public heonng with ’rhe Board of Trus’rees

2.'_'-The Town Clerk will publish a notfice of ’rhe pUblIC heonng ina newspoper -
o of general circulation within the jurisdiction of the Town within 21 days prior
~to'the hearing cmd will post @ no’rlce of ’rhe publrc hecrnng at the Town
Office. . . o

87



4/19/16

3. The Town Pianner, after consuitation with the Town Attorney and Town
Engineer, shall prepare a staff report for the Board of Trustees hearing
|nd|cc1’r|ng the sfcnff S recommendcmon regordmg the proposed vacation,

C Board of Trus’rees Ac‘non ' '
" The Board of Trustees shalll conduc’r a public heorlng ond moke a
de’rermlne’non on ’rhe vacation reques’r

D. Recordlng ‘ o
Should the Board of Trustees approve the vacation, petitioners shall submit a
Signature Mylar of the plat showing the ROW to be vacated and all new lofs
created by the vacation. Upon the Town Engineer's review and the Board of
Trustees’ signature the approved plat shall be recorded with the Arapahoe
County Clerk and Recorder. The oppllcon’r sholl prowde the Town Clerk with
a dIgITCﬂ copy of ’rhe recorded pla’r :

SECTION 2. WAIVERS AND EXEMPTIONS ' . .
Waivers of submittal requirements for an Application for Land Developmen’r or - -
~for all or a portion of the required processing fees, or an exemption from the
complete requirements of the land use regulations, or a deferment of one or
more of the submittal requirements may be approved by the Board of Trustees.

A. Submittal Requirements
A request for a waiver or exemption may be included with the original
opphcohon subml’r’red if requwed ora seporo’re Ie’r’rer ’ro the Town Planner.

B. Process s '
" The Town Plonner shall schedule ’rhe wcuver or exemphon reques’r for -
-cons:dero’non by the Board of Trustees. The land development application, -
which includes or is the subject of a waiver or exemption request, shall not be
scheduled for a Board of Trustees meeting until all waiver requests hove been
either approved or denied unless the request is minor in nature and’ a denial
would not mgmﬂcon’rly affect the processing of the plcm -

SECTION 3. APPEALS' S

In the eventthat any. person d|sogrees with a Town employee s or a consultant’s
~interpretation of the language of these regulations, he/she may appeal to the
Board of Trustees. Any appeal shall be in writing no later than 15 days after the
employee or Town consultant interpretation was made. The appeal shall be
heard by the Board of Trustees at its next regular meeting so long as such
mee’rlng is at least 15 days after the filing of the Oppeol

20



4119116

ARTICLE X

ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS

The list of required public improvements and the design and construction
standards for all public improvements are specified in Section 2 of this Article.
The requirements for a Subdivider Improvements Agreement are as specified in
Article VIlI, Section 4 and Appendix B of these Regulations.

SECTION 1. STREETS, CURBS AND GUTTERS, AND SIDEWALKS

Specifications, material requirements and standards related to the construction
and maintenance of streets are contained in Chapter 4 of the Arapahoe
County Infrastructure Design and Construction Standards in effect as of
December 15, 2006, revised December 31, 2007, with the following amended
definitions: (I} "Division of Engineering,” "County Engineer" or "Engineer” shall
mean the Town of Columbine Valley Engineer; {2) “Department of Development
Services/Infrastructure Management” shall mean the Town Engineer and Town
Planner; (3) "County” shall mean the Town of Columbine Valley, Colorado.

21



4/19/16

EXHIBIT A

TYPICAL STREET CROSS SECTIONS

92



4/19/16

IASVE AL VITHIOY——

7 (NOUdO NVICE)
. uOLOATIOD HOMVW

(S30IS HLOE “dAl) N¥d.- -
AFTIVA ALIHDNOD

MAY 2013

l—y

e —™ h,m r
WO NN O

i

R 2

HOLOITIOD HOPYW

{83015 HLOA: "dAL) Mvd
Tl AJTTEA FLIWONOD

ASVA ALYSI0IY

e ey e 4 B T S o

‘ =z
AN el

¢ f— e

T A A

mLid] o~

|
WO RN 0L S .

© N Y S PSS T I L LA W

" TOWN OF COLUMBINE VALLEY

 TYPICAL STREET SECTION

MMOR COLLECTOR WITH (MEDIAN Qpﬂom._'

|
|

?3



419/16

W0 _

(53018 HLOE 'ghl) Wyd
AFTI¥A J1LIHIKOD

A5%¥H JVIEHIOY

— 07O
[T

_ o FNIN 08

wow |
Lo Z3us

L

MAY 2013

' €OLD3TIO0 HONW

fSIAE HLOS "dAL) N¥d.

Bt s TR RETIS CiOGT R BAprth s v 15 Tarchiza 5]

' TOWN OF COLUMBINE VALLEY

TYPICAL STREET SECTION
MINOR COLLECTOR / LOCAL

REAE S N rai{n ctim]

ezaemat

94



ST CLISLSI0 391 3ANTSS3Y 3HL AS -
ol GANWEAL3E SYOHLOW F1EVIAING
bz do WAINIR ¥ LT3R ISR
A UL 3N 3l §OSY 0350d08d

SIATTIY 3Lenidd 4l 310N

- 4019716

| -MAY 2013 -

{53015 HLOE “dAl) Wed
S ATTIRA ALIHONOD

ASYE ALY¥EIUSDY = (Y HDENS

]
Inavd Zt

S ..Imso_@m_n_z_ 8

TYPICAL STREET SECTION
PRIVATE ALLEY

TOWN OF COLUMBINE VALLEY




41916

SECTION 2. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

STANDARDS

A. Public Improvements List Required o
The developer shall prepare a list of all requwed public 1mprovemenTs for the
proposed subdivision including, as a minimum, the items in the Required.
Public Improvements .chart below. This list shall be submitted with the final
plat and included as an exhibit to the Subdivider Improvemenfs Agreement.
The list shall-also include the developer’s estimate of the unit costs, a subtotal
estimated cost for each improvement category and a fotal estimated cost:
for the development. Upon the initial review by the Town Engineer, the Town
may require public improvements in oddl‘non to what'is listed in the Public
Improvements List. : -

96



4/19/16

REQUIRED PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

Improvement tems Unit Unit Price Cost
Streets Hot Bituminous Pavement | Square Yards/
Sq. Yd. /In. Inches of Depth
Aggregate Base Course Square Yards/
inches of Depth
Cut/Fill ~Cubic Yards
Grading Cubic Yards
Cross Pans Linear Feet
Curb/Gutter Linear Feet
Cart Paths Square Yards/
Inches of Depth
Trails Linear
Feet/Width
Special Structures Each
Street/Road Signs Each
Other (List)
Subtotal ' e
Improvement o fems. . Unit Unit Price. Cost
Water System Water Main (State Size) Linear Feet
Gate Valve/Box Each
Fire Hydrants Each
Valve Fitlings Lump Sum
Resurfacing Square Yards/
Asphalt Trench Inches of Depth
Gravel Trench
Steel Case Bore Linear Feet
Other (List)
Subtotal e L . _ , S
Improvement - | - Items - | Unit - Unit Price Cost -
Sewage System Manholes Each
Sewer Lines (State Size) Linear Feet
Lift Stations Each
Dewgtering Lump Sum
Other (List)
Subtotal - : L _
Drainoge Culverts/Storm Drains (state | Linear Feet
size)
Drainage Channels As Appropriate
Drainage Appurtenances | As Appropriate
Drop Inlets Each/Foot
Depth

97




4/19/16

Hared End Sections Each
Manholes Each
Excavation/Embankment/ | Cubic Yards

Detention Ponds

15%

Seeding Square Feet or
Acres
Other (List)
Subtoial g : S SR LT N
' Improvement . tems _ “.Unit " | UnitPrice Cost
Erosion Conirol Vehicle Tracking Control Each
During Construction Devices
Silt Fence Linsar Feet
Rock Dams Each
Hay Bales Each
Inlet Protection Each
Other
Geologic Abatement Structures Each
Soil Erosion Control/Topsoil Cubic Yards
Radiation Removal of Soil Cubic Yards
Replacement of Soil
Sensory Special Structures Each
Trees Each
Groundcover Square Yards
As Appropriate
Other Vegetation
Tracts Rough Grading Cubic Yards
Natural Seeding Square Yards
Subtotal ' o S
Engineering costs.
fncluding costs for
preparation and
review of any
CLOMR/LOMR]
Ceontingency Cost

Total

98




4/19/16

B. Public Improvement Design Standards

1.

Arapahoe County Standards Apply

Engineering criteria for public street design, inspection and testing
requirements for roadway and appurtenant structures in the Town shall be
as specified in the Arapahoe County infrastructure Design and
Construction Standards in effect as of December 15, 2006, revised
December 31, 2007, or latest revision, except as follows:

a. The following amended definitions: {l) "“Division of Engineering,”
"County Engineer" or "Engineer” shall mean the Town of Columbine
Valley Engineer; (2) “Department of Development
Services/Infrastructure Management” shall mean the Town Engineer
and Town Planner; (3} “County” shail mean Town of Columbine Valley,
Colorado.

b. All gutter pans shall be a minimum of three feet (3') wide.

c. The Middlefield Road Drainage and Transportation Master Plan dated
August 1997 also contains street design criteria. In the event of
conflicting standards, the design will be based on the Town Engineer’s
recommendation.

Streets

a. Street ROW widths, curves, radii, grades, site distances, minimum
design speeds and other design criteria are summarized in Table 4.1 of
the Arapahoe County Infrastructure Design and Construction
Standards, Chapter 4, Roadway Design and Technical Criteria.

b. Typical street cross sections are included as Section | of this article.

Water
The water distribution system shall be designed in accordance with the
requirements of the Denver Water Board and the local water provider.

Sanitary Sewer

The sanitary sewer system shall be designed in accordance with the
requirements of the local sanitary sewer service provider.

99



4119716

5. Drainage
Criteria, guidelines, specifications, material requirements and procedures
related to the study and design of storm drainage facilities within the Town

shall conform to:

a. The Arapahoe County Stormwater Management Manual in effect as of
January 30, 2007, with the following amended definitions: (I} “Division of
Engineering,” “County Engineer” or “Engineer” shall mean the Town of
Columbine Valley Engineer; (2) "Department of Development
Services/Infrastructure Management” shall mean the Town Engineer and
Town Planner; (3) “County” shall mean Town of Columbine Valley,
Colorado.

b. Urban Drainage and Flood Controi District standards, applicable Master
Plans, and Qutfall System Plans. At a minimum, this includes:
1} Dutch Lilley Coon Three Lakes Trib Master Drainageway Plan, Phase A,
Phase B, 2008
2) Dutch Lilley Coon Three Lakes Trib Flood Hazard Area Delineation, 2008
3} South Platte Master Drainageway Plan, Phase A, 1984
4) South Platte Master Drainageway Plan, Phase B, 1985
5) South Platte River, A Plan for the Future, Special Report, 1985
6) Columbine Valley Qutfall Systems Plan, 1985

6. Amendments to Arapahoe County Standards

Amendments to the Arapahoe County Infrastructure Design and
Construction Standards or the Arapahoe County Stormwatier
Management Manual will be reviewed by the Board of Trustees and may
or may not be adopted.

100



4/19/16

ARTICLE XI

DESIGN STANDARDS

SECTION 1. DESIGN STANDARDS

A. Purpose

The character and environment of the Town of Columbine Vdlley for future
years will be greatly affécted by the design of future subdivisions and the
plans that are approved by the Town of Columbine Valley. Planning, layout
and design of subdivisions are of the utmost concern.

1.

Lots and blocks should provide desirable settings for the buildings that are
to be constructed, make use of natural contours and protect the view,
afford privacy for the residents and provide protection from adverse noise
and vehicular traffic.

Natural features and vegetation of the area should be preserved if at all
possible. Schools, parks, churches and other community facilities should
be planned as an integral part of the area.

Structural design and landscaping shall be compatible with adjacent
developed or planned neighborhoods. The Board of Trustees may
consider the density, heights and setbacks, and the height-setback ratio.
The amount and freatment of landscaped areas, and the type of
landscaping of adjacent developed or planned neighborhoods or
subdiivisions, will be a consideration in the development stipulations.

Construction plans submitted with a building permit application shall
reflect the architectural style and materials that were included as
architectural exhibits in the approved Final Development Plan. Copies of
the appropriate architectural exhibit from the Final Development Plan
shall be included with the construction plans.

B. Higher Standards

The Town may require higher or more sfringent design standards where
appropriate so long as such standards are required by site considerations
and are in accordance with generally accepted design and construction
practices and in accordance with the purposes and intent of these
Regulations.

101



4/19/16

Where an HOA or other property owners association has adopted design
standards, those standards shall not be less sfringent than the standards
approved by the Board of Trustees. :

Site Considerations
1.

Difficult sites

Steep land; potentially unstable land; areas having potentially inadequate
drainage; areas having potential geoclogic or soils problems; or areas having
problems of such a nature as to potentially endanger health, life or property
shall not be platted unless studies and reports that provide for the elimination
or confrol of such problems have been submitied. Such studies and reports
shall be prepared by a registered engineer or other professional quadlified in
the particular field. Such studies must be approved by the Board of Trustees,
which shall judge the same, by generdlly accepted principles adapted to
the particular circumstances. All development in the subdivision shall be
carried out in conformity with the recommendations of the reports as finally
approved.

Noise abatement

Where a residential subdivision borders an arterial street or is contiguous to a
commercial or office development, subdivision design shall include provisions
for reduction of noise. Inclusion of walls, parallel streets, landscaped buffer
areas and lofs with increased setbacks, among others, are recommended
solutions. Walls adjacent to arterial streetfs or contiguous 1o a commercial or
office development shall conform to the Town'’s design standards as
specified in Article li, Section 3D of these Regulations.

Natural contours

In all subdivision design, the natural contours of the land should be preserved
whenever feasible. Grading, over lot grading, scarring of natural terrain
features and other topographical changes shall be kept to a minimum to
preserve drainage patterns. Vegetation removal shall be minimized as well as
the impact on the aesthetics of the special terrain in Columbine Valley.
Erosion, silting and fugitive dust during construction and afterward are 1o be
minimized.

Access
Adequate vehicular and pedestrian access shall be provided to all parcels.
Two points of public access should be provided when possible.,

Public Improvements

Public improvements design standards are specified in Article X, Section B of
these Regulations.

102



419/16

D Lcmdsc:ope Desrcm Gurdelrnes

“In Colorado, itis important fo rnc,orporo’re water conscious features and plonr

© material in the design of a site. This is achieved by site preparation, plant -
selection, proper installation, appropriate irgation, and maintenance. Green
infrastructure for the management of stormwater should be considered for.
every site. By integrating the landscape architecture of a site and s’rormwoter
momcrgemen’r the design team can avoid infrusive infrastructure and create
da sformwater system that | is oesrhehcoliy cr’rrrctchve cmd usedable to the
Commum’ry :

1

The oppircom‘ should prOVrde borh a pre!rmrnory plan ond final plcm for .
submittal to the town: -

d.

Preliminary Plan: The prelrmrnory landscape pian should show: -
conceplual locations of turf and native seeded areas; planting beds
and general locations of frees. The preliminary landscape planis

intended to show the overall site in a-conceptual state for review by
~ the Planning Commission and Board of Trustee approval.,

. ‘Final Plan: The final landscape plon should show dll'the locations,
species, and quantities of the turf-areas, native seeded dreas and

planting beds. The plan’ should have a plant list with quantities for the
enfire site with planting, edgrng site furnishing, and hardscape details.
The final plan is inftended to show the landscape in more delailto -~
solidify the locations and proposed piantings associated within the srre -
for review and opprovorl by ’rhe Planning Commission andl Bocrrd of

Trustees.

In crt:;cord_cmce WiTh‘-Sfdr_e"lnch, alllandscapes (excluding single-romily

residential design} should be designed by a Colorado Registered

Landscape Architect: The design and installation of landscape
improvements should adhere fo the followrng prrncrples and crn‘errcr

d.

Site Prepargtion , ‘

1} Incorporate four to five cubic ycrrcls of clcnss | or compos’r per 1 OOO o
- square feet of landscape area into the soil prior to planting, sodding-

~ or seeding. Soils are able 16 hold more of the water that is applied
: or"r_hcn‘ foilsz'n_o_’rurally when proper amendments are applied.

b Pig m‘ Selec’rron :

1} Plant material selected shouid be known to perform well along the'
Front Range of Colorado and aiso known to grow well in our varying
- climate conditions, For a.complete list of plants that will perform well
-~ on the Front’ Rcrnge see ’rhe ovorrlcrble lists from Colorcrdo Srore
" University. :

103



4/19/16

c. In

1)

Installation
Plants should be ms’ralled in accordance with best manc&gemen’r

practices that have been accepted as standard by the landscape

~industry. Refer to Colorado Stdte University's and GreenCO's
- guidelines on planting frees, shrubs, ornamental grasses and

2

" perennials. All planting beds shoutd have wood or'gravel mulch to

help retain moisture in the soil. All muich st 1ould be opplled at 3-4" in
depth settied. -

If weed barrier fabric is fo be used in p%onhng beds, ploshc non- .
woven fabric is prohibited. :

~d. Imigation

1)

Irrigation design should be periormed by a certified irigation

~designer. Turf areas, seeded areas, and planting beds should be

- hydrozoned so that plants that have similar water requirements are
_'groupéd together in an effort to conserve water. lrigation systems
- should be designed to avoid run- -off, low head drainage, and

overspray where water flows onto deocem properties, non-
irigated areas or hardscape surfaces. The design should meet all
applicabie plumbing and elecirical codes. Drip zones should be
used on all planting beds and spray heads or gear driven rotors
should be used on all turf or seeded areas. Smart controllers,
weather stations, master valves, and fiow sensors should be used for
IOrger sysif-ems as water conservation instruments.

e. Mam’rc—“narlce

e

Maintenance of all cormmons open space wfrhn | aresidential

- neighborhood should be provided by the hom@ oWnNars-association.

] )

3)

All landscape maintenance performed should be appropriate for
the site and be a key factor to the site design. This includes the
required pruning, weed conirol, mulching, fertilization and irrigation
maintenance thatis desired ior the site once the landscc:ipe is
installed. :
Pruning should be comple‘red as requned Thls inc udes the pfunmg
ol damaged or broken limbs. Pruning of shrubs should be limited to -
trimming out damaged plant material as excessive pruning can be
a detfiiment to plant health, Weed confrol should be done by o
licensed applicator. The maintenance crew should replace mulch
as needed for plant health and moisture retentior:. The:

- maintenance firm should schedule fertilization as is required by the . -

turf and plant species selected by the landscape architect. The
maintenance firm should implement a regular maintenance
schedule that inciudes inspecting the irigation system for domage.

104



s '4/19/16

f. Green Infrasfruc’rure

) Stormwater runoff is a major cause of pollu’non cmd flood damage

in our urban areas. In order to control this pollution and flooding risk,

- engineers have developed ways to regulate the flow of water and

distribution of poliutants. In recent years, the Urban Drainage and
Flood Control District (UDFCD) has implémen’red‘ddésire to-move
fowards more natural systems that use open channels, bio-swales, -
porous landscape detention and vegetation to restore some of The

‘natural processes required 1o manage water and create healthier

1 urban environments. By using the landscape and open space for

2)

this use as well as an amenity, it creca’re-s mul’nfoce’red benefl’rs to the
community.. - :
All new developmems in Columbine \/olley are encouroged to

- implement infovative ’rechmques for wcn‘er quoilfy Cmol defenhon

for stormwater managerment..

- E Architectural Design Standards

The design guidelines in Section 1 A 3 above are intentionally general in
nature. Thestaff and Planning Commission will review the design illustrations
submitted with the Land Use Application and the design guidelines

~ contained in the CC&R's. The architectural |||Us’fro’r|ons and. exhibﬁs provided
should conform to the following: S S

. Preilmmory Plan

Al a minimum provide graphic represenfahons showmg ’rhe buﬂdmg ’rype%
proposed. Representations should also ident lify the general height of
dwelling units, i.e., 1-2 stories in height and graphically include the generdl

~layout and illustrative street elevations. Perspectives should be provided 1o
clearly identify the design theme and architectural quality. Examples of
structures that the applicant has built in similar locations should.be
included. = PR

2. me Plon

01 Spec UI’HTS = =
o The architectural exh|b|’fs will illustrate the ocfuol units that will be built
- and'willinclude the foIIowmg detail:

O

©

Colored street and reor eleva’rions of QII models ‘rhof W||| be offered

- with floor plans and SC{UO%’S foofage

Window and doorway de’rcul.'

108



4/19/16

o ATToched omd or free s’r.onding lighting fixtures deiail

O No’res descnbmg The exterior struc’rurol moterlols e., no1uro or faux
: sfone stucco, wood, efc

o The final plon 5ubmlﬂo§ shall include the proposed CC&R s which
~ shallinclude the deS|gn standards proposed for the development.
Once approved by the Board of Trustee's, these demgn standards

shall not be moollﬁed without approval of fhe Town

o} CusTom Units
CU_STom units shall be built in accordance with the design s’ro_ﬂdord_s.': .

approved by the Board of Trustees and shall not be modified or
waived without the approvail of the Town.



4/19/16

ARTICLE XIl.
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS

SECTION 1. TITLE

These Subdivision Regulations establish rules, regulations and standards
governing the subdivision of land within the incorporated areas of the Town of
Columbine Valley, setting forth the procedure to be followed by the Board of
Trustees, the Planning and Zoning Commission and employees of the Town in
applying and administering these rules, regulations and standards, and setting
forth the penalties for the violation thereof as established by law. These
Subdivision Regulations relate to the subdivision of land and the improvements
thereon and esiablishes administrative procedures for administering these
Subdivision Regulations and establishes fees, as the Board of Trustees may from
time to fime amend them:

SECTION 2. SHORT TITLE

These Subdivision Regulations shall be cited as the “Town of Columbine Valley
Subdivision Regulations.”, and may be referred to as “these Subdivision
Regulations”. -

SECTION 3. PURPOSE
The purpose of these Subdivision Regulations is to:

A. To promote the health, safety and general welfare of the residents of the
Town of Columbine Valley.

B. To implement the godls and objectives of the Master Plan and ensure that
growth occurs in an orderly and efficient manner.

C. To establish adequate and accurate records of land subdivision.

D. To provide adequate, safe and efficient public utilities and improvements,
and to provide for other community facilities and land for public places.

SECTION 4. AUTHORITY

The Board of Trustees of Columbine Valley, Colorado is empowered, by law, to
adopt and enforce subdivision regulations for the corporate limits of the Town of
Columbine Valley, Colorado and in adjacent unincorporated territory within five
miles of the corporate limits as per Colorado Revised Statutes 1973, Section 31-
23-213 and 31-23-214 as amended.

107



47119716

SECTION 5. ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES

No person or agent of a person shall subdivide any parcel of land, which is
located in the Town of Columbine Valley into two or more parcels except in
compliance with these Subdivision Regulations. No person shall offer for record-
ing, in the office of the County Clerk and Recorder, any deed conveying a
parcel of land, or interest therein, unless such a parcel of land has been
subdivided, or otherwise created, in compliance with the rules set forth in these
Subdivision Regulations.

No lot within a subdivision creaied prior to the effective date of these
Subdivision Regulations or approved by the Board of Trustees under the
provisions of these Subdivision Regulations shall be further divided, rearranged,
or reduced in areq, nor shall the perimeter boundaries of any subdivision, or any
lot within a subdivision, be altered in any manner without the approval of the
Board of Trustees and as provided for in these Subdivision Regulations.

All officials and employees of the Town of Columbine Valley who are vested
with the authority 1o issue permits by the Board of Trustees or by state statute,
shall not issue permits, record documents, conduct inspections or otherwise
perform any duties or administrative actions that are not in conformance with
the provisions of these Subdivision Regulations.

Any person or agent of a person, subdivider or agent of a subdivider who sells,
transfers or conveys, or attempts to sell, transfer or convey property which has
been subdivided and which is subject to the provisions of these Subdivision
Regulations, without first obtaining approval of the subdivision of the property, or
the sale, transfer or conveyance of the property, in accordance with the
provisions of these Subdivision Regulations shall be charged with a misdemeanor
and if convicted of such charges, shall be punished by a fine of not exceeding
two thousand six hundred and fifty dollars ($2,650) for each parcel which is sold,
transferred or conveyed, or offered for sale. The time limit for initiating legal
action under the provision of these Land Use Reguiations shall be twenty-four
(24) months from the date of the alleged infraction. The Board of Trustees of the
Town of Columbine Valley shall have the power to bring an action to enjoin any
person or ageni of any person from selling, or offering for sale, subdivided land
which is subject to the provisions of these Land Use Regulations without first
obtaining the necessary approvals from the Board of Trustees, in accordance
with the applicable provisions of these Subdivision Regulations.



4/19/16

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT g
Amendments to these Subdrvmon Regulo’nons shall be as specrﬂed in Ar’rrcle v,
Section 2 of the Land Use Reguldhons ' . . :

SECTION 7 DEFINITIONS '
Definitions are included in Article Xlil-of the Land Use Regulohons and are
incorporated into these Subdivision Regulations by reference. -

SECTION 8. GENERAL PROCEDURES
~ The pre-applicatior procedures for a subdwisron opplrco’non are as specrfred ,
. '_Arhcle VI, Sechon 2A of the Land Use Regulohons

SECTION 9. PRELIMINARY PLAT

A. Intent . : :
The intent, processrng ond submittal requirements for a: prelrmlndry pld’r ore
as specified in Articles V1,2, B and VII,2,A of the Land Use Reguldhons

B. Conformance to Zoning Resolution
The Town shall'accept no- dpplrccmon for a preliminary plat if ’rhe proposed
developmen’r is noti in complrdnce wn‘h the Zonmg Ordrndnce

C. Explrdhon of Prellmlndrv Pld’r ‘ ‘
The prehmmory pldt dpprovol shail eXprre ergh’reen mom‘hs of’rer opprovol by
the Board of Trustees (See Article VI, Section 2, B, 10) unless an application for”_
final plan/plat approval for all or a portion of the property included in ’rhe
preliminary plan/plat has been filed. The Board of Trus’rees may grdn’r an’
extension of ’rhe penod of explrohon

SECTION 10 F!NAL PI.AT ‘
The processing procedures and subma’r’rdl requrremen’rs for final pld‘rs are as
specrfled in Ar’ﬂcles VI and VIl of the Land Use Reguld’nons

SECTION 11. RESUBDIVISIONS _

Any change to be made on an approved or recorded plat mcludmg bu’r nor
limited to, realignment of lot, block, or fract lines; division of any lof, block, or
tract into additional lots, Blocks or tracts; correction of any errars in the original .
plat; or areas reserved for public use. Unless the proposed resubdivision meets
the criteria for a Minor Subdivision as specified in Section 12 of this Article. The
proposed resubdivision shall be reviewed by the Plonmng and Zorung
Commrsmon dnd dpproved by the: Boord of Trus’rees : -

109



4119716

SECTION 12, MINOR SUBDIVISIONS

A. Intent

Minor Subdivisions are exemptions thal ollow cer?om clivisions or resubdivision
of land without gaing through the full preliminary plat process if, in the
opinion of the Town Planner, they meet The folloWingcriTerio:

?. fhere are fhree or Iess lofs i in ?he proposed subdw S|on

' 2 The proposed subdivision contains all the conhguous property owned or
‘under control of the applicant. Minor Subdivisions are no’r To be ihe first
stage of a larger subdivision. :

3. There are no major public improvements required or the public |
improvements weuld be minimal such as short extensions of water and -
sewer lines, ufility hook-ups, provision’ of a shorl cul-de-sac, etc.

| SECTION 13. PROCESSING RESUBDIVIS!ONS MINOR SUBDIVISIONS EXEMPTIONS
AND WAIVERS

A. Processmq Procedures '
The processing of Resubdivision, Minor Subdivisions, SUdeVISIOI"I Exemphons
Vacations, Appeals and Waivers of all or part of the processing procedures,
submittal requirements and fees shall be as specmed in the Lond Use
Regulations, as follows:

Resubdivision 7 Article VI, Se‘c’rlon 4A Major
: s Amendmen’rs
Minor Subd_i&_/‘isions_ : Ar’ncle VI, Sechon 4B Minor

Amendmen’rs_
Waivers and Exemptions  Arficle IX, Section 2 |

Appeols:y ! ' | Arfic_le-IX, Section, 3

B. Submittal Reqwremenfs - L
The submittal requirements for Resubdlvmons Mlnor Subdlvmons SUblelSlon
Exemptions, Vacations, Appeals and Waivers of all or part of the processmg
procedures, submittal requirements and fees shall be as specified in the Lond
Use Regulations, as foIIows

- 110



4/19/16

Resubdivision Article VIl, Section 3 Major Amendments
Minor Subdivisions Article VI, Section 4 Minor Amendments
Exemptions and Waivers  Article (X, Section 2
Appeals Article IX, Section 3
SECTION 14. VACATION OF ALL OR PART OF A FINAL PLAT
The Board of Trustees has the authority to vacate all or a portion of an approved
final plat. Vacation of a portion of an approved final plat is discouraged and will

only be considered when the objective could not be achieved through a
resubdivision.

A. Submiital Requirements

1. Payment of the application fees as estimaied by the Town Planner.
2. Ten copies of the following:

a. A map enfitled "A Vacation (name of subdivision or part thereof).
Include on the map, or attach, a legal description of the part or
portion fo be vacated.

b. A petition signed by not less than 50% of the owners of the lofs in the
subdivision or portion to be vacated.

c. A letter notifying all owners of record in the subdivision or portion to be
vacated, that did not sign the petition, that a request for vacation of
the final plat, or portion thereof has been submitted. Such letter shall
be by Cerfified Mail.

B. Process
1. Upon determination that the petition for vacation is complete and that
the non-petitioning lot owners have been noftified, the Town Planning shall
schedule a public hearing by the Board of Trustees.

2. The Town Planner, after consultation with the Town Attorney and Town
Engineer, shall prepare a staff report for the Board of Trustees hearing.

C. Board of Trustees Action
The Board of Trustees will either approve the vacation, as requested, approve
with conditions or deny for reasons specified. Appeals from the decision of

111



4/19/16

the Board of Trustees shall be as specified in Arficle [X, Section, 3 of these
Regulatfions.

D. Approval of the vacation shall be by Resolution. The Town Clerk shall cause
the Resolution and the accompanying map or plat to be recorded with the
Arapahoe County Clerk and Recorder's Office as soon as possible after
approval of the Resoiution :

112



4/19/16

ARTICLE XIii

DEFINITIONS

Rules of Construction

Generally, for the purpose of these Regulations, certain words and terms are
defined. Words used in the present tense include the future. The singular number
includes the plural, and the plural number includes the singuiar. The word “shall”
is mandatory and not discretionary. All words used in these Regulations and not
specifically defined shall be given their usual and commonly accepted
meaning.

Alley -Private. A private roadway as shown in Article X, Section 1, Exhibit A

ABUTTING. Having o common property line or district line with an adjacent
property. Properties separated by a right of way or easement shall be deemed
abutting if, in the absence of the right of way or easement, the properties would
have a common boundary.

ACCELERATION LANE. A speed change lane, including tapered areas, for the
purpose of enabling a vehicle entering a roadway fo increase its speed to @
rate which it can more safely merge with through traffic.

ACCESSORY BUILDING. A subordinate building or portion of a main building, the
use of which is incidental to that of the main building on the same lot, including,
but not by way of limitation, barns, sheds and similar structures, but not including
an attached garage.

ACCESSORY USE. A use subordinate to the principal use which serves a purpose
customarily incidental to the principal use.

ACRE. An area in any shape containing 43,560 square feet.

AFFILIATE. When used in conjunction with group home applications, any other
person who controls, who is under common control with or who is controlled by
such person.

AGRICULTURE. The art or science of cultivating the ground for the production of
crops and livestock.

ANTENNA. An gpparatus used for sending and/or receiving electromagnetic
signails.

113



4/19/16

APPLICANT. The person or agent of a person, upon proof of ownership, who
applies for and signs an application for a land development change.

AREA OF FLOOD HAZARD, AREA OF SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD, FLOOD HAZARD
AREA. The land in the flood plain subject to a 1 percent or greater chance of
flooding in any given year.

BACK OF CURB. The point on a concrete or asphalt curb furthest from a point
measured perpendicular from centerline of the adjacent road. See also BACK
OF PAN.

BACK OF PAN. The point on a concrete pan further from a point measured
perpendicular from centerline of the adjacent road. See also BACK OF CURB.

BASE FLOOD. The flood having a 1 percent chance of being equaled or
exceeded in any given year.

BASEMENT. That portion of a building that has a ceiling and a floor and where
the vertical distance from the floor 1o finished grade is greater than the vertical
distance from the ceiling to finished grade.

BASEMENT, WALKOUT. That portion of a building that has a ceiling and a floor
and where, on one or more sides of the building, the vertical distance from the
floor to finished grade is less than the vertical distance from the ceiling to
finished grade.

BERM. Mound of earth used for screening, definition of space, noise attenuation
and/or decoration in landscaping.

BLOCK. An area of land within a subdivision that contains one or more iots which
area is bounded enftirely by streets, highways or public ways, or the exterior
boundary or boundaries of the subdivision or other blocks in the subdivision.

BOARD. The Board of Trustees of the Town of Columbine Valley, Colorado.

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT. A group of individuals appointed or designated by the
Board of Trustees as having the responsibility for hearing requests for variances
from the Zoning Regulations or for hearing appeals as to the interpretation of the
provisions of those Regulations.

114



4/19/16

BUFFER. A strip of land established to separate and protect one type of land use
from another; to screen from objectionable noise, smoke or visual impact; or to
provide for future public improvements or additional open space.

BUILDING. Any structure used or infended for supporting or sheltering any use or
occupancy.

BUILDING ENVELOPE. The portion of a lot within applicable setback requirements
within which building construction will be permitted.

BUILDING FRONT. The side of a building ’rho’r.fcces a public right of way. When a
building faces two public rights of way, the building front shall be on the street
that is the building address.

BUILDING HEIGHT. The highest point of any structure, excluding chimneys, cupolas
or any exposed rooftop equipment, as measured from the highest point of finished
grade at the foundation of any existing structure as indicated by an improvement
survey completed by a registered land surveyor completed prior to any planned
demolition, remodel, reconstruction or construction, orin the absence of such
survey for any existing structure, from a point of three feet (3'} above the elevation
of the flow line {low point) of any gutter or gutter pan adjacent to the midpoint of
the front property line of the lot, or for new construction to be completed under an
approved planned development, from the highest point of finished grade at the
foundation of any proposed structure as shown on the final approved planned
development plan.

BUILDING LINE, FRONT. A line parallel to the front lot line extending the width of
the lot.

BUILDING, PRINCIPAL. A building in which is conducted the principal permitted
use of the lot on which it is situated.

CANOPY. An accessory roof-type structure which is permanently affixed to the
ground and typically not enclosed. As accessory structures, these structures
would be exempt from the minimum distance requirements between structures.
These structures must meet all other minimum yard requirements within the
zoning district,

CART PATH. A pathway designed for golf carts, pedestrions and bicycles that
may be attached to or detached from the street.

CHURCH. A building, together with its accessory buildings and uses, where
persons regularly assemble for religious worship, and which building, together

115



4/19/16

with its accessory buildings and uses, is maintained and controlled by a religious
body organized to sustain public worship.

COLLECTOR STREET. See STREET.

COMPATIBLE ARCHITECTURAL TREATMENT. The exterior design of structures that
ensures said structures are suitable to their purpose within the Town and in
keeping with the general appearance and quality of existing development.

CORRECTION PLAT. A plat which corrects errors in an original plat.

COUNTY. Arapahoe County, Colorado.

CUL-DE-SAC. See STREET.

CUPOLA. A smalll structure on top of a roof or building.

DECELERATION LANE. A speed change lane, including tapered areas, for the
purpose of enabling a vehicle leaving a roadway to decrease its speed to a
rate which it can more safely enter a driveway or side street.

DENSITY, NON-RESIDENTIAL. A measurement of the amount of floor area on a
given parcel of land. in non-residential development and is usually expressed as
a ratio between the gross floor area and the total site area. (See FLOOR AREA
RATIO.)

DENSITY, RESIDENTIAL. The number of dwelling units per unit of land. In these
Regulations, density is normally expressed as the number of dwelling units per
gross acre.

DISTRICT, ZONING. A portion of the Town within which the use of land and
structure(s) and the location, height and bulk of structure(s) are governed

DRIVEWAY. A private roadway intended to provide access to one existing
property and connecting to primarily local roads, afthough several exceptions
connecting to minor and major collectors are expected in undeveloped areas.

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED. An individual dwelling unit situated on one
lot but attached to one or more similar dwelling units by a common wall or party
wall. Where such a unit is attached to another, the property line shall be the
center of the common wall or party wall.

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED. A detached building designed for or
occupied by not more than one family as a home, residence or sleeping place,

116




4/19/16

either permanently or fransiently.

DWELLING UNIT. Kitchen, dining, living, sleeping and bath accommodations
necessary for service to a family.

EASEMENT. A grant by a property owner for the use of land by another person or
entity, or for a specific purpose.

EVIDENCE. Any map, table, chart, contract or other document or testimony
prepared or certified by a qualified person to attest to a specific claim or
condition, which evidence shall be relevant and competent,

FAMILY. An individual or two or more persons occupying a single-dwelling unit as
a single-housekeeping unit, related by blood, marriage or adoption; or not more
than three unrelated persons living together as a single-housekeeping unit;
provided that documented domestic servants employed on the premises may
be housed on the premises without being counted as a family or families.

FAMILY, IMMEDIATE. A person or persons occupying a single-dwelling vnit as a
single-housekeeping unit, related by blood, marriage.

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN. The final step in establishing approval of land uses
and site restrictions for a development. This document provides specific
information on the uses to be permitted and the manner in which they may be
situated on the property.

FLOOD OR FLOODING. A general and temporary condition of partial or
complete inundation of normally dry land areas from overflow of inland waters,
and/or the unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any
source,

FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP (FIRM). The official map on which the Federal
Emergency Management Agency has delineated both the areas of special
flood hazards and the risk premium zones.

FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY. The official report provided by the Federal
Emergency Management Agency that includes flood profiles, the Flood
Boundary Floodway Map and the water surface elevation of the base flood.

FLOOD PLAIN. The area adjoining any river, stream, watercourse, lake or other
body of standing water which is subject to inundation by a 100-year flood.

17



4/19/16

FLOODWAY. The channel of ariver or other watercourse and the adjacent land
areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without
cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than one-half foot.

FLOOR AREA RATIO. The ratio of building gross square footage to the gross
square footage of a parcel. For example, 43,560 square feet (43,560 sq. 1.} of
floor area on one acre (1 acre) of land would be a 1:1 floor area ratio.

FLOW LINE. The low point within the gutier pan, cross pan, or other surface
drainage feature that conveys surface water from one point to another.

GARAGE. An accessory building or portion of a main building designed or used
for the shelter or storage of motor vehicles owned or operated by the
occupants of the main building in which no business, occupation or service for
profit is in any way conducted.

GEOLOGIC HAZARD. A geological phenomenon which is so adverse to past,
current or foreseeable construction or land use as to constitute a significant
hazard to public health and safety or to property. This ferm includes, but is not
limited to, landslide, rockfalls, seismic effect, mud flow, ground subsidence, and
unstable or potentially unstable slopes.

GRADE, FINISHED. Finished ground surface resulting from construction activities,
disposal of all excavated material and placement of topsail.

GRADE, ORIGINAL. The grade prior to any cuts or fills, as verified by a
topographic survey certified by a registered land surveyor or, if requested by the
Town, by analysis of core samples of soils taken at the proposed corners of a
building pad. When necessary, original grade is considered the historic grade
documented for the site in August 1959. Any fill or other land disturbing activity
since 1959 does not reset the ‘original’ grade for the subject parcel.

GROSS FLOOR AREA (GFA). The total floor area of a building or structure
enclosed by the outer walls including all stories {floor levels), exclusive of
basement area, garage space and porches.

GROUP HOME. (a) a “state-licensed group home for the exclusive use of
developmentally disabled persons” as that term is used in Section 303(2}(a} of
the Group Home Act; (b) a *non-profit group home” of an “owner-occupied
group home" as those terms are used in Section 303{2}(b} of the Group Home
Act; or (¢} a "state-licensed group home for the exclusive use of mentally ll
persons” as that term is used in Section 303(2)(b.5) of the Group Home Act.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term "group home™ does not include a
home or facility which houses more than one individual who is required to

118



419116

_ '.regrs’rer Qs a sex offender under the provrsrons of Colorodo Revrsed S’ro’ru’res
- Section 18-3-412.5, as amended. ' :

- :GROUP HOME ACT Section 31-23-303 of ’rhe Colorodo Revrsed S’ro’ru’res as such
: may be amended from fime ’ro time.

HANDICAP Physical or men’rol |mpcrrrmen’r whrch subs’ron’rrolly limits ohe or more
of a person’s maijor life activities, and as further defined by the us. Depor’rmen’r
of Housing and Urban Development (24-CFR 1§ 100.201 (4-1. = Edr’rron) in.

. response to the Fair Housing Act Amendments of 1988

S _HOME OCCUPATION. Any occupcr’rlon or ochvrry wh|ch is clearly rncrden’rol to-
- and conducted wholly within a dwelling unit and notin any accessory burldlng

_ '_or space on the premrses by residents of the dwelllng unl’r

HOAu Home Owners 'Assocro’rron

Home Owners Assocrahon The legal enh‘ry consrs’nng of the proper’ry owners in
-a organized subdivision that is responsrble for the maintenance of common

o _3properry in that subdivision and has the power to establishes rules and
o regulo’rrons for the use of both common and prrvo’re property.

j_:IMPROVEMENT PLAN The maps or drawings occomponylng a building perm|’r Ey
application showing the specrfrc location and desrgn of |mprovemen’rs tobe
installed ina developmen‘r : '

IMPROVEMENTS. S’rree’rs curbs gutters, srdewolks pedes’mon wolks wo’rer mains,

- fire-hydrants, sanitary sewers, storm sewers and drainage facilities, gas lines,
“underground and overhead electric and telephone lines, street trees, street -

lights and o’rher such items as may be de5|gnored by the Towntobe .~

. @_.'|mprovemen’rs

LAND DEVELOPMENT The oc’rron of chornglng the use of a piece of proper’ry, 2o
including the zoning and subdivision process and related construction oc’rrvrhes

LOT. A parcel of land occupied or designated to be occupied by one"burldrng

- and the accessory buildings or uses cus’romcrrlly incident fo it, mcludrng ’rhe open
-spaces required by this fitle and such-open spaces are arranged and . .
designated to be used in connection with such buﬂolrngs and excludrng the - -
street on which the dwelllng is addressed. .
Lee: This descrlp’rlon of Lot seems cumbersome ond perhops mcomple’re The o
term Lot also used as part of a legal descnphon



41916

C’orne'r A lot abutting two or more s’rree’rs at ’rhe:r intersection or upon two
parts of the same street and where in either case the interior angle formed
by the m’rersec’rlon of the street llnes does no’r exceed 135 degrees

Coverage Tho’r por’rron of the lot area covered by a buﬂdmg(s) mcludmg C|||-
‘ overhonglng roofs cmd parking areas.

'_Doub!e Froniqge A Io’r having a frontage on two non- miersec’nng streets as
_dls’nngUf_shed from a corner lot. .
Interi'or.': A lot other than a corner lof.

LineI Fronf The line separating a lot from a sfree’r or road upon which the
‘ pnnCIpoi building faces. ‘

: Lme Rear. The lot line opposite and mos’r dls’fcm’r from ’rhe front line, except
for corner lots. The rear lot line may be any lot line not. fronhng on a street.

- Line, Side. Any lot line that is neither front nor rear.

_;-Wldih The d|s’rc1nce between side lot Ilnes meosured at the rear of the front
'yord o ‘

L g’Lei‘i’er" The Town staff will complete a de’rdéied review of the plan and
suppor’rmg documents and will send the applicant a leﬁer stohng the required and
recommended revisions or requests for clcmficomon :

MAJOR COLLECTOR See STREET.

| MAJOR STREET PLAN That por’rlon of ’rhe Master Plcm which dehneo’res the Iocc’nons
_of pnncuool arterial, minor or’renol and: collec’ror s’rree’rs =

3 MASTE-R PLAN. The master plan for development of the Town of Columbine Valley
-prepdred and adopted by the Planning and Zoning Commission and Board of Trustees,
' ~ pursuant fo s’ro’re law, and including any pQrT of such pion separately adopted and any
omendmen’r to such plan, or parts thereof. - :

MEDIAN. An area marked or constructed upon a roodwoy or be’rween ’rwo odjqcen’r o
roadways, for the purpose of seporohng opposmg ’rrqfﬂc .

: _iMEE_TING. . When_u_sed in these Reguldhons;ony regulor or sﬁ:iecfol meeting of the .

- Bodird of Trustees, the Planning and Zoning Commission or other appointed boards of

~the Town of Columbine Valley. The term “meeting” does not imply an official public
hearing. o S o

MINOR COLLECTOR. See STREET.

120



4/19/16

MOTHER-IN-LAW APARTMENT/DWELLING UNIT. A portion of an existing or proposed
dwelling unit in which a member of the immediate family resides. If located within an
existing or proposed dwelling unit, such dwelling unit may provide separate kitchen
facilities and separate entrances from the principal dwelling unit,

NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURE. A structure legally existing and/or used at the time of
adoption of these Regulations, or any amendment thereto, which does not conform to
the regulations of the zoning district in which it is located.

NON-CONFORMING USE.A use of land legally existing and/or used at the fime of
adoption of these Regulations, or any amendment thereto, which does not
conform with the regulations of the zoning district in which it is located.

OFF-STREET PARKING. A site or portion of a site devoted to the off-street parking
of motor vehicles including garages, parking spaces, aisles, access drives and
specially designated areas.

ON-STREET PARKING. A portion of a public right-of-way that allows parking of
motor vehicles on one or both sides of the right-of-way while permitting two-way
traffic and safe passage of motor, emergency, and maintenance vehicles.
Typically this is only possible when 24 feet or more roadway width remains
vnimpeded by parked vehicles.

OPEN SPACE- GROSS Land utilized for recreational, landscaping and/or
buffering purposes. Examples include parkiands, residential yards and
landscaping treatments within non-residential developments.

OPEN SPACE-COMMON Land utilized for recreational, landscaping and/or
buffering purposes. parklands, drainagways, recreational facilities, trails, natural
preserves, efc. and which is conirolled and maintained by an HOA, the Town,
Urban Drainage and Flood Control District or entity other than individual fot
owners .

OQUTDOOR STORAGE. The storage of materials, vehicles or equipment outside of
the principal permitted structure on any parcel, which material is either wholly or
partially visible excluding vehicles used by the residents or owners of the
structure or by customers of a business establishment.

PD See PLANNED DEVELOPMENT.

PDP. See PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN.

121



4/19/16

PERMANENT MONUMENT. Any sfructure of masonry and/or metal permanently
placed in or on the ground, including those placed there expressly for surveying
reference.

PERSON. An individual, proprietorship, partnership, corporation, limited liability
company, association or other legal entity.

PETS. Dogs, cats, small animails, repftiles and fowl which are customarily kept in
the home or on the premises, as those that may be purchased at local pet
stores, for the sole pleasure and enjoyment of the occupants,

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD). An area of land controlled by one or more
landowners to be developed under unified control or unified plan of
development for a number of residential, commercial, educationdal,
recreational or industrial uses or any combination of the foregoing, the plan for
which may not correspond 1o lot size, bulk or type of use, ot coverage, open
space and/or restrictions of the existing land use regulations.

PLANNING COMMISSION. See PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION.

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION. That group of individuals appointed or
designated by the Board of Trustees having the responsibility for adopftion or
amendment of a master plan and other planning responsibilities as set forth in
Colorado Revised Statutes 31, 1973, as amended, and, as defined by the Board
of Trustees including, but not limited to, recommendations to the Board of
Trustees on applications for zoning amendments and subdivision plats.

PLAT. A map of certain described land prepared for the purpose of subdividing
land in conformance with these Regulations or amending, revising or vacating
an existing subdivision.

POLITICAL SIGN. A sign announcing or supporting political candidates or issues
erected on private property. Political signs shall not exceed twenty inches by
twenty-six inches {20" x 26") in area.

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN {PDP). The first formal step in establishing land
uses and site restrictions for a Planned Development.

PRINCIPAL PERMITTED USE. The primary use(s) established for a parcel of land.

PUBLIC HEARING. A meeting of the Board of Trustees, Board of Adjustment or
Planning and Zoning Commission with a specific subject matter and open to the
public with notice given stating the fime, place and purpose of the hearing.

122



4/19/16

PUBLIC UTILITY. Every firm, partnership, association, cooperative, company,
corporation and governmental agency, and the directors, trustees or receivers
thereof, whether elected or appointed, which is engaged in providing railroad,
airline, bus, electric, rural electric, telephone, telegraph, communications, gas,
gas pipeline carrier, water, sewerage, pipeline, street transportation, sleeping
car, express, or private car line facilities and services.

QUASI-PUBLIC USE. Charitable, educational, cultural and/or religious
organizations or uses which, as a primary function of their operation, provide
significant benefits to the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Town
of Columbine Valley, as may be determined by the Board of Trustees. Examples
of such uses are religious organizations, whose buildings are intended for
religious services; private meeting halls; and private schools.

RECREATION, PRIVATE/COMMERCIAL. Uses, structures and/or land utilized for the
provision of recreational activities and/or open space which may be
developed, operated and/or maintained by an entity other than a public entity,
such as a swimming pool, tennis court/club, recreation center, efc.

RECREATION, PUBLIC. Uses, structures and/or land utilized for the provision of
recreational activities and/or open space that may be developed, operated
and/or maintained by a public entity.

REPLAT. See RESUBDIVISION.
RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITY.

For Developmentally Disabled. A licensed or certified, by appropriate agency,
building which is owner-occupied, for the purpose of providing care and
supervision or treatment for those persons having cerebral palsy, multiple
sclerosis, sclerosis, mental retardation, autism and epilepsy. “"Developmentally
disabled” in this section shall mean those persons having cerebral palsy, multiple
sclerosis, mental retardation, autism and epilepsy.

For Mentally lll Persons. A state-licensed building, which is owner-occupied, for
the exclusive use of not more than eight persons with mental iliness, as that term
is defined in Colorado Revised Statutes Section 27-10-102 (1973, as amended).

For Persons 60 Years of Age or Older. A state-licensed building, which is owner-
occupied, for exclusive use of not more than eight persons 60 years of age or
older who do not need skilled and intermediate care facilities.

RESUBDIVISION.Any change to be made on an approved or recorded plat
including, but not limited to, realignment of lot, block or tract lines; division of

123



4/19/16

any lot, block or tract info additional lots, blocks or tracts; correction of any
errors in the original plat; or areas reserved for public use.

REZONING. A revision to the Zoning Map that changes the zoning district
designation of a parcel of land or alters the boundaries of a zoning district.

RIDING STABLE AND/OR ACADEMY. Any establishment that rents, boards or
leases riding animals and gives lessons to develop horsemanship.

RIGHT OF WAY (ROW). An area or strip of land over which a right of passage
has been recorded for use by vehicles, pedestrians and/or facilities of a public

ufility.
ROW. See RIGHT OF WAY.
SIA. See Subdivider Improvements Agreement

SITE-SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN. Shall mean the final approved PD plan in the
Town of Columbine Valley.

SIGHT TRIANGLE. An area of land located at intersections of streets, drives and
other public and/or private ways situated to protect lines of sight for motorists,
within which, the height of materials and/or structures is limited. Dimensions,
geomeitry, and orientation for any given intersection are specified by Town
engineering standards.

SIGNS. Any object or device containing letters, figures and/or other means of
communication or part thereof, situated outdoors or indoors, of which the effect
produced is o advertise, announce, communicate, identify, declare,
demonstrate, direct, display and/or instruct potential users of a use, product
and/or service. '

STABLE. A structure to house riding animals.
STATE. The state of Colorado.
STORAGE CAPACITY, FLOOD PLAIN. The volume of space above an area of

flood plain that can be occupied by floodwater of a given stage at a given
time, regardless of whether the water is moving.

STREET. A delineated public or private right of way specifically designed and
intended for use by motor vehicles:

124



4/19/16

Arerial. A street outside of the town boundary that is primarily intended to move
traffic from major collectors into the regional fransportation network.

Collector. (see Major and Minor Collector]

Cul-De-Sac. A local street with only one outlet and which terminates on the
opposite end in a vehicular turnaround.

Expressway. A divided roadway which permits rapid and relatively unimpeded
movement of fraffic through and around a community serving maijor traffic
generators within the community and connecting with major access routes into
the community. Access is controlled on this type of facility.

Frontage Road. A street designed fo provide access fo property that abuts on
a limited access highway.

Lane. A sitreet that serves a limited number of lots and that has a lower
classification than a local street.

Local Street. A street designed to service the needs of the neighborhood and
provide direct access to abutting properties. Through -fraffic movements are
discouraged on this type of facility.

Maijor Collector. A street primarily intended to move traffic from minor
collectors to other major collectors and arterials outside of the town boundary,
and where access to existing properties is a secondary function.

Minor Arterial. A street intended to collect and distribute traffic in a manner
similar to principol arterial, except that these roads serve minor traffic-generating
areas such as commercial areas, primary and secondary educational facilities,
hospitals, major recreational areas, churches and offices, and are desighed to
carry traffic from collector streets to the system of principal arterials.

Minor Collector. A street primarily intended to (1) move traffic from local roads
to major collectors and {2) provide access to existing properties, and which by
design standards is a lower classification than a maijor collector.

Principal Arerial. A sireet that permits rapid and relatively unimpeded fraffic
movement throughout communities and that connects major land use elements
with one another. The major function is to serve through traffic. The secondary
function is to serve abutting property. This functional description pertains to both
four- and six-lane facilities.

125



4/19/16

. 'Siaie Highway. A right of way or Iocohon whe’rher Gc’ruolly used as a highway or
- not, designated for the construction of a state highway upon it as specn‘red in
Colorado Revised S’ro’ru’res Section 43-1-204 (l 973).

Stub Sireet An infernal streef or road extending ’ro ’rhe subdivision bounclc:ry cmcl
terminating with no permanent vehicular turnaround. Stub streets are prowded to
permit adjacent undeveloped parcels of land to be developed later W!‘rh c:ln
adjacent connecting street system, -

STREET PROFILE. A drawing re.flecfihg' a proposed or existing section of a road,
street or alley for which right of way is to be'conveyed or dedicated to the Town
of Columbine Valley for road purposes. It may be an existing or designed profile,
and may reflect el’rher a cen’rerllne ond/or bo’rh flow Ianes or curb lines of a rood

: _ _'s’rreei or olley

R STRUCTURAL ALTERATIONS. Any chonge in ’rhe supporting members of G )
~ building such as beormg walls, columns, posts, beams, girders, floor10|s’rs or roo1c .
‘JOISTS ‘ : o

STRUCTURE. That which is built or cdns’rruc’red 'An edifice or building of any
kind, or a piece of work or’nflc:lolly built up or. composed of parts joined fogether
_in'some defined manner..

-'STRUCTURE TEMPORARY A s’rruc’rure'wh'ic.:'h is not a permanent structure,-or.
one which is cons’rruc’red for a'special purpose in contemplation of even’rucﬂ
removal. : :

SUBDIVIDER. Any person,'firm, pdr’rnership, joint venture, association or |
corporation who shall participate as owner, promoter, developer or sales agent
in the planning, plo’rﬂng develOpmen’r, promO’rion, sale or lease of a subdivision.

SUBDIVIDER IMPROVEMENTS AGREEMENT The contract or instrument used to -
specify the public |mprovemen’rs required in a subdivision and con’rcunlng one or
more security arrangements, which may be occep’red by the Town of . T
Columbine Valley to secure the construction of such public mprovemen_fs

'SUBDI|VISION OR SUBDIVIDED LAND. The division, or resubdivion, of any lot, fract =~
or parcel of land into two or more parcels or lofs, plats, sites or other division of
land for the purpose, whether immediate or in the future, of sale or planned
developments, whether or not a plat has been recorded.

126



;'4/19/16

Minor Subdlvmon The division of Iond into not more ’rhon ’rhree lots or porrcels
and which conforms to the criteria specrfled in Ar’ncle Xll Section12 of these -
Regulohons :

360 DEGREE ARCHITECTURAL TREATMENT. Burldlng mo’rerlols color schemes ond
rooftop screening which are identical on all sides of a s’rruc’rure ond Whlch
enclose loading docks and other servrce areas.

TOWN. The Town of Columbrne Volley, Co!orodo

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR/CLERK Sholl mean ’rho’r person oppom’red by The Bocrrd
of Trustees to perform the normal odmlnlsfrohve duties, including but-not Ilml’red
to, collection of fees, issuance of permits, maintenance of the records and -
minutes of Planning and Zoning Cornmrssron and Board of Trustees meehngs
and performs other administrative duties as drrec’red The Town ‘
Administrator/Clerk also acts as the Zoning Administrator and is responsible for
the m’rerpre’ro’rron ond odmrnrs’rro’rlon of the zoning regulations.

TOWN ATTORNEY That person(s) Who provrdes legal advice ond legol services
to the Board of Trus’rees ond o’rher boords ond commissions in the Town ' :

TOWN ENGINEER. Tho’r person(s) who prowdes advice on eng!neenng issues to
the Board of Trustees and other boards and-commissions, and when directed,

provides engrneenng design of publrc faciliies and construction rnspec’rron of

_ publrc focrh’rres : o .

TOWN PLANNER Tho’r person(s) who prowdes advice fo the Plonnrng ond
Zoning Commission: ond Boord of Trustees on land use issues. ’ :

VESTED PROPERTY RIGHTS The right to under’roke aond complete ’rhe
development and use of property under the terms and conditions of a sn‘e-
specific development plan and shall be deemed es’robllshed upon opprovol of
such 5|’re specrflc developmen’r plon

~ WATERCOURSE. Achonnel slough, artificial channel, gulch, aroyo, stream,
creek, pond, reserv0|r or Ioke whrch carries or contains storm runoff and
floodwater. :

YARD.That area of a lot which is fo the fron’r srde or rear of a burldrng

Froni Yard. That. por’r of ’rhe Io’r Iyrng in front of the burldrng ond ex’rendrng to ’rhe
side lof lines. :

127



4/19/16

Rear Yard. That part of the lot lying in the rear of the building and extending to
the side lot lines.

Side Yard. That part of the lot lying between the front and rear building and
between the building and side lot lines.

ZONING ADMINISTRATOR. The Town Administrator of the Town of Columbine
Valley,

128



4/19/16

APPENDIX A

ZONING MAP

129



4/19/16

130



4/19/16

Town of Columbine Valley
2015 Zoning Map

Legand
. |Zonkng :
| 3 ce{Country Ciub )

1o Lo ‘ E_IPRE{P!mmdﬁuldmﬂHEquﬂﬂun)
e o : B9 R Residerth)
Lo R | Em P (Realdental Agrloulhine) .
' . A l:] u-lhwpmhd Emh\ﬂ |

131



4/19/16

132



4/19/16

APPENDIX B

Format For

SUBDIVIDERS IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

133



4/19/16



4/19/16

SUBDIVIDER IMPROVEMENTS AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of the ____ day of
, AD , by and between . hereinafter
referred to as "Subdivider,” Homeowners Association (HOA),
hereinafter referred 1o as the “HOA,” and the Town of Columbine Valley, a
municipal corporation, State of Colorado, hereinafter referred to as "Town.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Subdivider is the owner of acres located at
hereinafter referred fo as the "Property,” being further defined
as , which is described in Exhibit A, attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference; and

WHEREAS, all of the Property is located within the Corporate boundaries of
the Town; and

WHEREAS, certain guestions regarding the rights and obligations of
Subdivider and Town have arisen; and

WHEREAS, both parties herein desire to execute a contract specifically
defining the rights and obligations of each, all as contemplated by the Town,
the Subdivider and the HOA agree as follows:

l.

STREETS

A. The Subdivider agrees to dedicate, and the Town agrees to accept,
rights of way (ROW) for the full width of the streets lying within the Property, as
shown on: sample {the final plaf of Subdivision as approved
( date)

B. Subdivider further agrees to improve the Property by paving all streets
located within the Property with an asphalt surface in full conformance with the
street design standards and specifications as established and in use by the Town
except as may be modified in the final improvements drawings and
specifications as approved by the Town. Geotechnical services and materials

135



4/19/16

testing reports shall be provided to ensure the quality control of any ufility
trenches and pavement placement.

C. The Subdivider agrees to install, or cause to be installed, a street
lighting system in accordance with the Town standards and specifications.

D. Town agrees to accept the street after a two-year warranty period, if
constructed according to plans and specifications approved by the Town.

II.
OPEN SPACE DEDICATION
A. The Subdivider agrees to dedicate, free and clear to the HOA, and the

HOA agrees to accept , as described on the final plat,
upon completion of the public improvements.

WATER AND SANITARY SEWER

A. The parties mutually agree that Subdivider shail design and install water
lines and fire hydrant(s) within the Property described herein in accordance with
Denver Water Board and Columbine Water and Sanitation District standards
and specifications. Subdivider represents that said entities have already
approved its plans. All water and sewer improvements will be installed in
accordance with specifications of the provider of water and sewer services. Any
agreements between the Subdivider and such providers may be attached to
this Subdivider Improvements Agreement as exhibits.

B. The Subdivider will connect to the Columbine Water and Sanitation
District sewer line for service and that district may impose a tap fee and service
fees.

C. Columbine Water and Sanitation District will own and maintain said
sewer mains.

D. Resclution of problems associated with sediment deposition or
clogging of sanitary sewer mains by construction debris shall be the responsibility
of Subdivider, until such time as responsibility therefore is accepted by the
provider of sewer services.

V.

136



4/19/16

STORM DRAINAGE

A. All storm drainage improvements shall be designed and installed in full
conformance with the approved construction plans and specifications.
Subdivider agrees to dedicate to the appropriate parties ([HOA and/or Town
and/or Urban Drainage and Flood Control District) and improve all necessary
unobstructed and unencumbered access streets and easements within the
Property for storm sewers and/or transmission of stormwater as indicated on the
final plat.

B. Town agrees to accept the drainage improvements constructed after
a two-year warranty period, if constructed according to plans and
specifications approved by the Town.

C. The storm drainage improvements shall be completed in accordance
with the drainage plan approved by the Town and Urban Drainage and Flood
Control District. Upon the dedication of drainage improvements by the
Subdivider, the party to whom such drainage improvements have been
dedicated shall thereafter be responsible for storm drainage maintenance
thereof. Subdivider shall remain responsible for storm drainage maintenance
with respect to those drainage improvements that have not been dedicated.

D. Subdivider agrees to provide a two-year warranty on all public and
private storm drainage improvements. Said warranty period shall begin when
the Town receives notice from the Town Engineer and the Urban Drainage and
Flood Control District that the improvements are completed according to the
plan specifications. In the event that said public and private storm drainage
improvements are not installed according to the approved plans in the opinion
of the Town Engineer or the Urban Drainage and Flood Controi District, the
Subdivider will be required to take cormrective actions necessary to bring said
storm drainage system in compliance with the approved plans to acceptance.
The warranty period shall automatically be extended until said system is
determined to be built in accordance with the approved plans. Resolution of
problems associated with the storm drainage improvements due to erosion and
sediment deposition or clogging by construction debris shall be the responsibility
of Subdivider.

E. The Subdivider shall mainfain certain erosion control measures (such Qs
straw bales and silt fences) around the perimeter boundary, where necessary, fo
protect adjoining properties from silt and sediment from entering their property
during grading operations. Subdivider agrees to install and maintain erosion and
sediment prevention measures in accordance with the approved Erosion and
Sediment Control Plan.



4/19/16

F. Subdivider shall prepare a Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR}
to remove the property from the flood piain. Subdivider agrees to provide a
surety bond, irrevocable letter of credit or other suitable form of guarantee as
approved by the Town for the cosi to prepare the CLOMR prior to the execution
of the final plat by the Town. The guarantee for the cost of the CLOMR shall be
released upon approval of the CLOMR as deemed appropriate by the Town.

V.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND DEVELOPMENT ASSURANCE

A. The Subdivider agrees to provide a surety bond, irevocable letter of
credit or other suitable form of guarantee as approved by the Town Atftorney for
all public and private improvements contemplated by this Agreement (the
“Guarantee”) which are to be dedicated to the Town. The Guarantee shall be
provided to the Town before the final plat is recorded. The Guarantee shall be
for 115 percent of the total cost of the improvements to be dedicated to the
Town, which are not installed as of the date of approval of the final plat.

B. The Subdivider shall, at its own expense, furnish and install the public
improvements in accordance with the consfruction drawings and engineering
ptans approved by the Town,

C. Subdivider shail complete the improvements delineaied herein within
the schedule shown in Exhibit B. Subdivider may request extensions of up to one
year within which to complete the improvements, however, the Subdivider shall
make such extension requests at least 30 days prior to the expiration of fime
frames established within the schedule shown in Exhibit B. Any extension request
shall require a review and approval of the Town and possible increase in the
Guarantee provided as necessary to cover inflation, real or anticipated.

D. The Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) has issued a state
highway access permit from to . Construction
shall be in accordance with said CDOT-approved plans.

E. The Town shall release that portfion of the assurances attributable to the
public improvements completed, except the 15 percent contingencies, when
the conditions for start of warranty, as determined by the Town Engineer, are
meft. The Town shall release the remaining amount upon final acceptance of all
public improvements by the Town, which shall be one year after preliminary
approval of all public improvements and of course subject to and conditioned
upon final review and acceptance by the Town Engineer.

Vl.
138



4/19/16

LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS, DEVELOPMENT ASSURANCES
AND HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

A. The Subdivider agrees fo install and provide assurances for landscaping
and irrigation systems located within (name of development)
as set forth on (fitle of plan, e.g., landscape plan, development plan).
All improvements shall be in conformance with the final improvement
drawings and specifications as prepared by a Landscape Architect and
approved by the Town of Columbine Valley.

B. The Subdivider agrees to warrant the landscaping, irrigation system
and fencing for a period of one year after installation. In the event said
improvements are not in an acceptable and satisfactory condition at the end
of the warranty period, in the opinion of the Town Landscape Architect, the
Subdivider shall take corrective measures as necessary to bring said
improvements into an acceptable and satisfactory condition prior to
acceptance.

C. The Subdivider further agrees and acknowledges that the Subdivider or
the:

HOA, a duly organized non-profit corporation, and not the Town, will be
responsible for the continuous and perpetual maintenance of (specify
improvements, facilities, etc.):

as defined on the plat of {title of plat and date approved), including

landscaping and fencing installed therein by the Subdivider or the HOA.
The Subdivider or the HOA, and not the Town, will be responsible for the
continuous and perpetual maintenance of;

The responsibility for said maintenance has been established by a declaration of
covenants, conditions and restrictions, and sdid covenants, conditions and
restrictions regarding said maintenance responsibility and requirements or
provisions for the funding thereof are not subject fo amendment without the
prior approval of the Town.

D. Subdivider acknowledges and agrees that it shall construct an eight-
foot {8') wall along its Property adjacent to . which wall shall
be of the same design and material as the existing Town wall which has already
been erected adjacent to Platte Canyon Road. Said wall constructed by

139




4/19/16

Subdivider shall measure eight feet {8'}) from the top of the walll to the top of the
grade, and shall have a two-foot (2') concrete base barrier and six feet (6') of
brick just as the existing Town wall.

VII.
MISCELLANEOUS

A. Subdivider acknowledges that the Town will not allow construction
above ground and framing of ali units until an all-weather access road,
approved by the City of Littleton Fire Department, is constructed and fire
hydrants, in acceptable proximity to the construction site, are in place and
operational. Subdivider acknowledges that the Town will not issue building
permits until it has granted approval of all final construction plans. Moreover,
Certificates of Occupancy or temporary Certificates of Occupancy for units
and/or buildings will not be issued until all utilities required by the construction
drawings and engineering plans are completed by or approved by Excel Energy
and/or Columbine Water and Sanitation District, and in any event Certificates of
Occupancy, temporary or otherwise, shall not be issued until all improvements
are complete and certified as complete, by the Town, including roads and
drainage facilities.

B. Subdivider warrants that the Property is free from any contamination
from hazardous or toxic materials on or below the surface of the Property.
Subdivider's Phase | environmental evaluation of the subject Property
determined the Property to be free from contamination by hazardous or toxic
materials on or below the surface of the Property.

C. The parties agree that this Agreement is the only Subdivision
Improvements Agreement existing for the Property as described in Exhibit A and
that it contains a full infegration of all terms and agreements between the
parties hereto with regard to said Property.

D. Subdivider agrees, in developing the Property, that it will meet all of the
codes, regulations and policies of the Town as established under the municipal
code of the Town, except as modified herein. Acreage dedicated to the public
in conjunction with this development is shown on the plat of the Property.

E. All proposed public utilities, including but not limited to all water and
sewer mains and service stub-outs, electrical services, natural gas, telephone
and cable TV, shall be installed underground or sleeves provided and prior to
construction of any overlaying street, curb, sidewalk or gutter in order to prevent
unnecessary pavement cuts,

140



4/19/16

F. The Subdivider shall be responsible for the payment of any and all fees
incurred during the zoning and platting process, as more particulary required in
Article VI, Section 2.A.3, of these Regulations. All such fees paid, or other
guarantees acceptable to the Town, shall be made prior to the appropriate
sighing of the signature Mylar of the final plat.

G. This Agreement may not be assigned or delegated without the written
consent of the parties which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

H. Any nofice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given for all purposes if sent by
certified or registered mail {postage and fees prepaid), addressed to the party
to whom such notice is intended to be given at the address set forth on the
signature page below or at such other address as has been previously furnished
in writing to the other party. Such notice shall be deemed to have been given
when deposited in the U.S. Mail.

I. The captions of paragraphs are set forth only for convenience and
reference and are not intended in any way to define, limit or describe the
scope or intent of this Agreement,

J. The parties agree to execute any additional document(s} and to take
any additional action necessary to carry out this Agreement.

K. Unless otherwise stated in this Agreement, exhibits referenced in this
Agreement shall be incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes.
Reference to construction drawings, engineering plans, landscape plans,
drainage plans and the like in this Agreement are a reference to construction
documentation that is a public record on file and available for review at the
offices of the Town of Columbine Valley.

L. Further, upon breach by Subdivider or its assigns, the Town shall have
the right to refuse to issue for any phase of the development contemplated
herein, building permits, certificates of occupancy or any other approvals
required hereunder. In the event any amounts due and owing to the Town
under this Agreement are not paid in a timely manner, the Town
shall be entitled to draw upon the bond or irrevocable letter of credit posted by
the Subdivider, and the Town shall be authorized to complete the improvements
in connection therewith. In the event such improvements have never been
started by the Subdivider, the Town shall have the right and option to vacate
the final plat or to draw upon the bond or irrevocable letter of credit posted by
the Subdivider and the Town shall be authorized to complete the improvements
in connection therewith.

141



411916

M. The waiver by any party to this Agreement of a breach of any term or
provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any
subsequent breach by any party.

N. In addition to claims for domages and any other remedies the parties
may have upon the breach of this Agreement by the other party, the
aggrieved party shall have the right to request a court of proper jurisdiction to
enter an order against the other party requiring specific performance of the
terms contained in this Agreement and any mandatory injunctive relief that may
be necessary. '

O. Invalidation of any of the provisions of this Agreement or any paragraph,
sentence, clause, phrase or word herein, or the application thereof in any given
circumstance, shall not affect the validity of any other provision of this

Agreement.
P. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.

Q. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties, and
there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings.

R. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed
by both parties.

S. The Subdivider's payment of fees and charges specified by this
Agreement shall be delivered to the Town of Columbine Valley, 2 Middlefield
Road, Columbine Valley, Colorado 80123,

T. During construction, Subdivider shall use proper dust and erosion confrol
and maintain streets and roads in such a manner that they may be reasonably
traveled upon. Subdivider may secure construction areas within the Property
from the general public during construction, except for necessary local traffic,
representatives of the Town and other appropriate jurisdiction on official
business and emergency service providers.

This Agreement, when executed, shall inure to the benefit of and be binding
upon the successors, assigns and heirs of the respective parties. The original
hereof shall, upon execution, be recorded in the Public Land Records of the
County of Arapahoe, State of Colorado.

ATTEST:

Subdivider a Colorado
By:

142



411916

President
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
as President

Title:
Date:
ATTEST: TOWN OF COLUMBINE VALLEY

A Municipal Corporation

2 Middlefield Road

Columbine Valley, Colorado 80123
By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:

Town Aftorney

143



4119716

144



4/19/16

APPENDIX C
AMENDMENT HISTORY
DATE ORDINANCE/ ARTICLE OR DESCRIPTION
APPROVED | RESOLUTION # APPENDIX#
SECTION#
May 25, Resolution # 4, All Adoption of new land use
2013 Series 2013 regulations
July 16, Appendix A Rezoned Willowcroft Manor
2113 Zoning Map from A (Agriculture) to
RPD (Residential Planned
Development
November | Trustee Bill # 9 All Amendment to Zoning
18, 2014 Code
February Trustee Bill #1 Appendix A Rezoned Wilder Lane
17,2015 2015 Zoning Map From A(Agriculture) an

MU(Mixed Use) to RPD
(Residential Planned
Development)

145







